
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

February 7, 2017–8:35 a.m.
Escambia County Central Office Complex

3363 West Park Place, Room 104
             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes.  
 

A.   A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the January 3, 2017 Regular Planning Board
Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for January 2017.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for February 2017.
 

5. Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Public Hearings.  
 

A.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
2030 Future Land Use Map, LSA-2016-03

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for transmittal to the Department of Economic
Opportunity (DEO), an Ordinance amending the 2030 Future Land Use Map.

 

B.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter
2, Development and Compliance Review
That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development
Code (LDC) Chapter 2, Development and Compliance Review, Article 6,
Special Conditions and Circumstances, amending Section 2-6.2 through
Section 2-6.10 to require additional public notification for certain



Section 2-6.10 to require additional public notification for certain
quasi-judicial hearings, appeals of administrative decisions, variances,
conditional uses, substantial hardship variances, and other reviews;
amending Chapter 2, Development and Compliance Review, Article 7, LDC
and Comprehensive Plan Amendment, amending Section 2-7.1 through
Section 2-7.3 to require additional public notification for zoning and future
land use map amendments.

 

C.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter
2, Article 5, Final Plats
That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development
Code (LDC) Chapter 2, Article 5 “Subdivision”, Section 2-5.7 “Final plats”;
establishing a requirement for an infrastructure maintenance disclosure.

 

D.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending
Chapter 3 Article 3, Section 3-3.7, Scenic Highway Overlay

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development
Code (LDC) Chapter 3 Article 3 Overlay Districts, Section 3-3.7 "Scenic
Highway Overlay," to refine the list of structures that must meet the minimum
50' setback from the Scenic Highway right-of-way.

 

7. Action/Discussion/Info Items.  
 

A.   Spot Zoning Discussion
 

8. Public Forum.  
 

9. Director's Review.  
 

10. County Attorney's Report.  
 

11. Scheduling of Future Meetings.  
 

The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, March
7, 2017 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office Complex,
Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

 

12. Announcements/Communications.  
 



 

13. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Regular   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 02/07/2017  

Agenda Item:
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the January 3, 2017 Regular Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for January 2017.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for February 2017.

Attachments
Draft January 3, 2017 Planning Board Regular Meeting Minutes
Monthly Action Follow-Up
Six Month Outlook



D R A F T
MINUTES OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

 January 3, 2017

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:31 A.M. – 8:47 A.M.)
(9:29 A.M. – 10:36 A.M.)

Present: Reid Rushing   
  Alvin Wingate   
  Jay Ingwell   
  Wayne Briske, Chairman   
  Timothy Pyle   
  Edwin Howard   
  Patty Hightower, School Board (non-voting)   
  Stephanie Oram, Navy (Non voting)   
Absent: Tim Tate, Vice Chairman
Staff Present: Allyson Cain, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning

Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
John Fisher, Senior Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Sr Office Assistant
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Timothy Pyle 

Motion was made to approve the proof of publication and to waive the
reading of the legal advertisement. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Tim Tate (ABSENT) 
 



4.  Approval of Minutes.
 

A.     
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Regular Meeting Resume' Minutes of the December 6, 2016 Planning
Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for December 2016.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for January 2017.

  

 

5.  Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Timothy Pyle 

Motion was made to accept the Rezoning Planning Board meeting
packet for January 3, 2017. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Tim Tate (ABSENT) 
 

6.  Public Hearings.
 

A.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
2030 Future Land Use Map, LSA-2016-04.

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for transmittal to the Department of Economic
Opportunity (DEO), an Ordinance amending the 2030 Future Land Use
(FLU) Map.

  

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Edwin Howard 

Motion was made to recommend approval for the BCC. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Alvin Wingate (ABSENT) 
  Tim Tate (ABSENT) 

 

B.      A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending LDC
Chapters 5 and 6

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance amending the Land
Development Code (LDC), Chapters 5 and 6, to clarify enforcement,
mitigation, and other tree protection and landscaping provisions.

Director Horace Jones pulled this item from the agenda.

  



 

7.  Action/Discussion/Info Items.
 

A.  Spot Zoning Ordinance.

Board Members and Staff discussed different options. Board wanted to
bring the item back next month for more discussion.

 

B.     2017 Planning Board Meeting Calendar.

Board Members reviewed the 2017 Planning Board meeting calendar.

  

 

C.  50 foot lot width in LDR.

Citizen was not present to discuss item. Rescheduling of the discussion is
to be determined.

 

8.  Public Forum.
 

9.  Director's Review.
 

10.  County Attorney's Report.
 

11.  Scheduling of Future Meetings.
 

 The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
February 7, 2017 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

12.  Announcements/Communications.
 

13.  Adjournment.
 



 
Memorandum 
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Kayla Meador, Board Clerk 
 
DATE:  January 27, 2017 
 
RE:  Monthly Action Follow-Up Report for January 2017. 
 
The following is a status report of Planning Board (PB) agenda items for the prior month of 
January. Some items include information from previous months in cases where final disposition 
has not yet been determined. Post-monthly actions are included (when known) as of report 
preparation date. Items are listed in chronological order, beginning with the PB initial hearing on 
the topic. 
 
PROJECTS, PLANS, & PROGRAMS 
 
 
COMMITTEES & WORKING GROUP MEETINGS 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 
  
• Text Amendments: 

CPA-2016-02 
OLF Saufley Airport 
08-02-16  PB Recommended Approval 
09-01-16  BCC approved transmittal to DEO 
01-05-17 BCC approved 
 
CPA-2016-03 
Definition added for “Limited Ag Uses” 
10-06-16 PB recommended approval 
11-03-16 BCC approved transmittal to DEO 
 

• Map Amendments: 
 
LSA-2016-02 
Saufley Field Road 
09-06-16  PB recommended approval 
10-06-16 BCC approved transmittal to DEO 
01-05-17 BCC approved 
 
 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE 
PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32505 

PHONE: 850-595-3475 
FAX: 850-595-3481 

www.myescambia.com 

1 
 



LSA-2016-03 
Beulah Road 
12-06-16 PB dropped case 
 

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE ORDINANCES 
 
Residential Uses in Zoning Districts 
09-6-16 PB recommended more review by staff 
  On hold – waiting for input from County Attorney’s Office  
 
OSP-2016-01 
09-06-16 PB recommended approval 
12-08-16 BCC wanted to reschedule for DEO to be in attendance to meeting 
 
Medical Marijuana 
11-01-16 PB recommended approval 
12-08-16 BCC reviewed 
01-05-17 BCC approved 
 
Spot Zoning 
12-06-16 PB dropped item and wanted more discussion 
 
REZONING CASES 
 
1. Rezoning Case Z-2016-08 

10-06-16 PB recommended approval contingent upon LSA-2016-02 
01-05-17 BCC approved 

 
2. Rezoning Case Z-2016-10 

12-06-16 PB recommended denial 
01-05-17 BCC denied 

 
3. Rezoning Case Z-2016-12 

12-06-16 PB recommended approval 
01-05-17 BCC approved 

 
4. Rezoning Case Z-2016-13 

12-06-16 PB recommended approval 
01-05-17 BCC remanded back to PB 

2 
 



PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE 
SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR FEBRUARY 2017 

(Revised 1/27/17)  
 

A.H. = Adoption Hearing         T.H. = Transmittal Hearing          P.H. = Public Hearing 
* Indicates topic/date is estimated—subject to staff availability for project completion and/or citizen liaison  

 

Meeting Date 
 

LDC Changes and/or 
Public Hearings 

Comprehensive 
Plan 

Amendments 
Rezoning 

Reports, 
Discussion and/or 

Action Items 

Tuesday, February 7, 2017 • 2500 Foot Radius 
• Infrastructure Maint. 

Real Estate Disclosure 
• Scenic Hwy Overlay 

• LSA-2016-03 • Z-2016-11 
• Z-2016-13 
• Z-2016-14 
• Z-2016-16 

• Spot Zoning 

Tuesday, March 7, 2017 • CIP  
• LDR Lot Width 

   

Tuesday, April 4, 2017     

Tuesday, May 2, 2017     

Tuesday, June 6, 2017     

Tuesday, July 11, 2017     

 
Disclaimer: This document is provided for informational purposes only. Schedule is subject to change. Verify all topics on the current 
meeting agenda one week prior to the meeting date. 
 

** Residential Uses Ordinance – waiting on input from the County Attorney’s Office 
** Signs Ordinance – waiting on input from the BCC 
** CPA-2016-01 Extraction and Reclamation – on hold 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. A.           
Meeting Date: 02/07/2017  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the

2030 Future Land Use Map, LSA-2016-03
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the 2030 Future
Land Use Map, LSA-2016-03

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
transmittal to the Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO), an Ordinance amending
the 2030 Future Land Use Map.

BACKGROUND:
The agent requests a Future Land Use (FLU) map amendment to change the FLU
category of a 56.80 ± acres parcel from Industrial (I) FLU to Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S)
FLU. The zoning designation for the referenced parcel is Industrial (Ind) District. The
applicant is aware that the current zoning and proposed FLU are not compatible. The
applicant has submitted a rezoning request for the February 2017 Rezoning Planning
Board for FLU and Zoning compatibility. The applicant understands that a rezoning
approval will be necessary to make the FLU compatible.
 
The subject parcel can be accessed along Isaac Lane and Beulah Road.  It is located
north of SR 10 (US 90A)/West Nine Mile Road and south of Interstate 10. The property is
surrounded by heavy vegetation to the north and to the east.  Residential homes are
located adjacent to the south and across Isaac lane to the west.
 
The applicant has indicated that the proposed activity will be for an approximate 110 lot
subdivision. This is based on the anticipated demand from of the expansion of Navy
Federal Credit Union Campus, as they move their headquarters to Escambia County. 
 
The subject parcel had a FLU change from MU-S to I case number LSA-2014-02
(14-3ESR) in 2014. Also the parcel was rezoned from Villages Agricultural District
(VAG-2), to General Industrial District (ID-2), case number Z-2014-12 on September 4,
2014.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:



No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency
by Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments
are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the Comprehensive Plan will  be filed with the Department of
State following adoption by the board.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the Comp Plan and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with  the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
LSA-2016-03
Draft Ordinance



LSA-2016-03 



FOX TAIL
L O OP

BL
A K

EEVAN

C IR

B EU LAH RD

FRANK REEDER RD

BE
LL

RI
D G

E
D R

H E R I TAGE

O AK S DRBR
ID

LE
W

OO
D 

RD

BAS SW
OO

D

B L VD

W KINGSFIE LD R D

MOBILEHWY

MA

SSENADR

PILCHER
RD

TO
BI

E
DE

AN
 R

D

ARC H
A VE

HIL
REE LN

PATCH LN

INTERSTATE

10

BEL LRIDGE T RL

BOO
LN

BUMPY RD

KENT
LN

WILD
ROSE LN

AN
GY

LA
W

AY

ALOH
A LN

MEAD OW

FIEL D CI
R

CATTLE DR

EL
ER

AL
 D

R

JA
Y 

RD

FOXTA IL
LOOP

RACER
LN

ARCH

A
VE

DA
RL

EN
E

CI
R

FE
LD

ON
 L

N

WONDERLAKE
RD

W
IN

DY
 H

IL
L  

RD

AL
DE

R
AV

E

CHEST ERDR

W N INE MILE  RD

RE
BE

L 
RD

SA
LT GRA S SDR W

DEVINEF ARM RD

BEULAH CHURCH RD

SUWANEE RD

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 2,000 4,000 6,000

Ft

LSA-2016-03
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

IS
AA

CS
LN

SF



Pub
Agr

LDR

MDR

Ind

Ind

RMU

LDR

LDR

LDR

Pub

LDR

BO
X E

LD
E R

B L
VD

FRANK REEDER RD

TRELL IS L N

BASSW O OD

BLV D

CA
STL EBERRY

BL VD

MASSENA
DR

PATCH LN

LY
NN

DA
LE

 D
R

EL
ER

AL
 D

R

JA
Y 

RD

BEULAH RD
AL

DE R
AV E

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

W KINGSF IELD RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 700 1,400 2,100

Ft

LSA-2016-03
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

IS
AA

CS
LN

93.01 ACRES



P AG

AG

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

P

RC

I

I

MU-S

MU-S

BO
X E

LD
E R

B L
VD

FRANK REEDER RD

TRELL IS L N

BASSW O OD

BLV D

CA
STL EBERRY

BL VD

MASSENA
DR

PATCH LN

LY
NN

DA
LE

 D
R

EL
ER

AL
 D

R

JA
Y 

RD

BEULAH RD
AL

DE R
AV E

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

W KINGSF IELD RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 700 1,400 2,100

Ft

LSA-2016-03
CURRENT FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

IS
AA

CS
LN

93.01 ACRES



P AG

AG

MU-S

MU-S

MU-S

P

RC

I

I

MU-S

MU-S

PROPOSED MU-S 
56.08 ± ACRES

FRANK REEDER RD

TRELLIS LN

BASSW OOD

BLV D

CA
STLEBERRY

BLVD

MASSENA
DR

PATCH LN

LY
NN

DA
LE

 D
R

EL
ER

AL
 D

R

JA
Y 

RD

BEULAH RD

AL

DE R
AV E

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 600 1,200 1,800

Ft

LSA-2016-03
PROPOSED FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

ISA
AC

S L
N

I
37.3 ± ACRES



BO
X E

LD
E R

B L
VD

FRANK REEDER RD

TRELL IS L N

BASSW O OD

BLV D

CA
STL EBERRY

BL VD

MASSENA
DR

PATCH LN

LY
NN

DA
LE

 D
R

EL
ER

AL
 D

R

JA
Y 

RD

BEULAH RD
AL

DE R
AV E

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

W KINGSF IELD RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 700 1,400 2,100

Ft

LSA-2016-03
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

IS
AA

CS
LN

TIMBER

TIMBERVACANT
COUNTY PROPERTY

TIMBER

VACANT

PROPOSED 
JENNINGS SUB

237 LOTS

VAC
SF SF

SF
SF

SF SF
SF

SF
SF

SF

SF

SF

SFSF
SF

SFSF

SF

SF

VACANT

SFSF
SF SF

SF
SF

SF

SF

SF

SF SF
SF

ARBOR RIDGE
SUBDIVISION

ELERAL ESTATES
SUBDIVISION

93.01 ACRES



BEULAH RD

FRANK REEDER RD

TRELLIS  LN
IS

AA
CS

 L
N

ISAACSLN

MASSEN A
DR NATHERLY

DR

EL
ER

AL
 D

R

JA
Y 

RD

INTERSTATE 10

AL
DE

R 
AV

E

INTERSTATE 10

W KINGSFI ELD R D

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
WETLANDS_20060 500 1,000 1,500

Ft

LSA-2016-03
AERIAL/WETLANDS MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

SF

93.01 ACRES



BO
X E

LD
E R

B L
VD

FRANK REEDER RD

TRELL IS L N

BASSW O OD

BLV D

CA
STL EBERRY

BL VD

MASSENA
DR

PATCH LN

LY
NN

DA
LE

 D
R

EL
ER

AL
 D

R

JA
Y 

RD

BEULAH RD
AL

DE R
AV E

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

W KINGSF IELD RD

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 700 1,400 2,100

Ft

LSA-2016-03
AIPD MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

IS
AA

CS
LN

SF

AIPD 2

AIPD 1

93.01 ACRES



Public Hearing Sign



Looking North Along Beulah Road



Looking Across Beulah Road



Looking South Along Beulah Road



Cp CLARK PARTINGTON
fTlTl ATTORNEYS AT LAW

January 13, 2017

Jesse W. Rigby
Direct (850) 434-3282

jrigby@clarkpartington.com

Hand Delivery

Escambia County Planning Board

Via: Director, Development Services Department
3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, Florida 32505

Re: Application of Briar Ridge, LLC for FLUM Amendment and Rezoning

Dear Planning Board Members:

I represent Briar Ridge, LLC, and will be appearing on the company's behalf at the Planning Board
meeting that will consider the referenced application. Forwarded with this cover letter is an Addendum to
the Application. The Addendum provides factual information and legal analysis that is both relevant and
important. Iam providing this Addendum well in advance of the Planning Board hearing so that it can be
reviewed by the Planning Board and its legal counsel, and by the Development Services Department staff,
prior to the Planning Board hearing.

I encourage your legal counsel and the Development Services Department staff to let me know if
there are additional question Ishould address in advance of the hearing.

JWR\cw

Enclosure

cc: Client
A2477534.D0CX

Sincerely,

\LmjlU.
Messe W. Rigby

(850)434-9200 I 125 West Romana Street. Suite 800, Pensacola, FL 32502 I clarkpartington.com

Pensacola I Destin I Tallahassee I Santa Rosa Beach I Orange Beach



































































Dewberry-

january 13, 2017

Dewberry Engineers Inc.
PREBLE-RISH 25 West Cedar Street. Suite 110

Pensacola.FL 32502

RE: Letter of Request - 56 +/- Acre Site FLU Change

850.435.7424

www.dewberry.com

To Whom It May Concern:

We respectively request the propertydescribed hereinbe granted the change of FutureLand Use to
MU-S as depicted onATTACHMENT A. The parcel previously helda Future Land usefor residential
prior to a land usechange and rezoning that predated the recent real estate recession.

In the current adjusted market and following current development trends in the area, the subject
propertywouldbe moreappropriately useda single family residential. Much new development has
occurredalongBeulah Road over the past 6-8years and this area in the western portion of the county
continues to be the leader in new construction activities. The largest development on east end of Nine
Mile Road continues to be the expanding Navy Federal Credit Union Campus. Navy Federal has
relocated a facility to the site and will soon be the largest single employer in Escambia County,
announcing in October of 2016a plan to growanother 54 percent over the next five years.Ground
breaking has occurred and much of the expansion is currently underway. This Nine Mile Road
corridor of the countycontinues to be the strongest developingportion of the area which will further
increase the housing demand.

Thank you for consideration of our application and we trust you will find sufficient documentation
supporting our request.

Sincerely,

Joe A. Rector, Jr.
Senior Associate

Dewberry | Preble-Rish

Page 1 of 1









































































Comprehensive Plan  
Large-Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment  

Staff Analysis  
 
General Data 
 
Project Name:  LSA 2016-03 – Beulah Road and Isaac Lane  
Location:  11975 Beulah Road     
Parcel #s:  34-1N-31-2101-000-001 
    
Acreage:  56.80 ± acres 
Request:  From Industrial (I) to Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S)   
Agent:  Joe A. Rector, Jr., Dewberry/Preble-Rish and Jesse Rigby, Agent 

for Bolley L. Johnson, Briar Ridge LLC.  
Meeting Dates: Planning Board, February 7, 2017 
   BCC, March 2, 2017 
 

Site Description and Summary of Proposed Amendment: 
 
The agent requests a Future Land Use (FLU) map amendment to change the FLU 
category of a 56.80 ± acres parcel from Industrial (I) FLU to Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-
S) FLU. The zoning designation for the referenced parcel is Industrial (Ind) District. The 
applicant is aware that the current zoning and proposed FLU are not compatible. The 
applicant has submitted a rezoning request for the February 2017 Rezoning Planning 
Board for FLU and Zoning compatibility. The applicant understands that a rezoning 
approval will be necessary to make the FLU compatible.  
 
The subject parcel can be accessed along Isaac Lane and Beulah Road.  It is located 
north of SR 10 (US 90A)/West Nine Mile Road and south of Interstate 10. The property 
is surrounded by heavy vegetation to the north and to the east.  Residential homes are 
located adjacent to the south and across Isaac lane to the west.  
 
The applicant has indicated that the proposed activity will be for an approximate 110 lot 
subdivision. This is based on the anticipated demand from of the expansion of Navy 
Federal Credit Union Campus, as they move their headquarters to Escambia County.   
 
The subject parcel had a FLU change from MU-S to I case number LSA-2014-02 (14-
3ESR) in 2014. Also the parcel was rezoned from Villages Agricultural District (VAG-2), 
to General Industrial District (ID-2), case number Z-2014-12 on September 4, 2014.  

Analysis of Availability of Facilities and Services:  



LSA 2016-03 – 11975 Beulah Road 

The availability of public facilities and services for the site of a Future Land Use map 
amendment requires analysis of the general demands of its proposed use.  All specific 
level of service (LOS) standards established by Escambia County are evaluated for 
compliance during the review processes prescribed by the LDC for approval of 
proposed development. 

Sanitary Sewer Service. 
CP Policy INF 1.1.7  Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the peak LOS 
will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day.  For nonresidential uses, the LOS 
requirements will be based upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC), as may 
be recalculated by the service provider from time to time, and on the size of the 
nonresidential water meter.  Escambia County will continue to work with the water 
providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 

CP Policy INF 1.1.11  Required New Service Connection.  All new structures 
intended for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system unless 
ECUA has determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service to the 
proposed structures.  Those structures not required to connect to the ECUA wastewater 
system will not be issued a building permit until the applicant has obtained the 
appropriate permit from the Health Department. 

Analysis: The adopted level of service standards for sanitary sewer established in 
Comprehensive Plan Policy INF 1.1.7 states that the LOS requirements shall be based 
upon an equivalent residential connection calculated by the provider. The applicant 
must coordinate with the local provider to ensure capacity is available for the project.   
Once the project is submitted, all of the LOS will have to be achieved and the project 
will be further evaluated during the Site Plan Review process. The subject property is 
within the service area of the Emerald Coast Utility Authority (ECUA) for sanitary sewer. 
Connection to ECUA’s system in compliance with its requirements is the responsibility 
of the developer.  

Solid Waste Disposal.   
CP Policy INF 2.1.2  Perdido Landfill Operation.  Escambia County will provide and 
operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste disposal 
needs of the entire County. 
CP Policy INF 2.1.4  Level of Service (LOS) Standards. The LOS standard for solid 
waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 

Analysis: As established in Comprehensive Plan policy INF 2.1.4, the adopted LOS 
standard for solid waste disposal in the county is six pounds per capita per day. The 
Perdido Landfill current build-out of the 424-acre landfill facility is 74 acres. Based on 
population growth projections and estimated annual Class 1 municipal solid waste 
(MSW) received, the estimated remaining life of the landfill is 68 years. Once the project 
is submitted, all of the LOS will be evaluated during the Site Plan Review process. 

Potable Water Service.   

Page 2 of 8 



LSA 2016-03 – 11975 Beulah Road 

CP Policy INF 4.1.4  Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of potable water facilities concurrent with the demand for such facilities but no 
later than the certificate of occupancy, as created by development or redevelopment 
through the implementation of the Concurrency Management System. 
CP Policy INF 4.1.6  Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer unless 
otherwise funded by the service provider. 
CP Policy INF 4.1.7  Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
potable water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential 
connection per day.  For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based upon 
an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service provider at 
the time of application.  Escambia County will continue to work with the water providers 
to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 

Analysis: Emerald Coast Utilities Authority (ECUA) standard for residential uses, the 
LOS requirements shall be based upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to 
be calculated by the service provider at the time of application. Once the project is 
submitted and in coordination with ECUA, all of the LOS standards will be evaluated, 
during the Site Plan Review process. 

Stormwater Management. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.5  Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for such 
facilities as created by development or redevelopment through implementation of the 
Concurrency Management System. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.6  Developer Responsibilities.  Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the responsibility 
of the developer. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.7  Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Stormwater management 
LOS will be monitored through the provisions in the LDC design standards.  
Analysis: The applicant has documented and understands the requirements for 
stormwater management. The applicant acknowledges that separate requirements and 
permitting thru other state agencies such as the Northwest Florida Water Management 
District may be required. If approved, based on the proposed operations, further 
analysis and evaluation will be conducted during the Site Plan Review process.    
The applicant must ensure that all of the required State and Federal agencies are 
contacted and that the required permits are obtained. The presence of sensitive lands 
on site may require a more in-depth assessment by the agencies involved. The County 
stormwater engineer will evaluate the proposed project to ensure all of the stormwater 
management standards are met. Once the project is formally submitted, all of the LOS 
will be evaluated during the Site Plan Review process. 
  

Streets and Access.   

Page 3 of 8 



LSA 2016-03 – 11975 Beulah Road 

CP Policy MOB 1.1.1 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Levels of Service (LOS) will 
be used to evaluate facility capacity.  Escambia County will adopt LOS standards for all 
roadways as indicated in the LDC.  The standards for SIS facilities may be revised based 
on changes to the federal classification of these roadways.  These standards are not 
regulatory but provide a basis by which the County may monitor congestion and 
coordinate needed improvements with FDOT. 

Analysis: The following language is from an excerpt from the interoffice memorandum 
comments provided by the County’s Transportation and Traffic Operations (TTO) 
Division staff:  
 
TTO Staff has reviewed the Large Scale Amendment (LSA)-2016-03 and Rezoning 
Case (Z)-2016-11, Beulah Road at I-10, agenda item for the upcoming Planning Board 
meeting scheduled for February 7, 2017. Please see the below comments. 
 
Upon review of LSA-2016-03 and Z-2016-11, TTO Staff provides the following 
information regarding an existing programmed regional and local transportation project 
commonly known as the Escambia County Beulah Beltway / I-10 Interchange Project 
(Project). This project is expected to impact the subject site, as well as potentially other 
properties within the vicinity once the project moves into the future Right-Of-Way and 
Construction Phases. The Project limits as identified in the Florida-Alabama 
Transportation Planning Organization Long Range Transportation Plan begins at the 
Nine Mile Road at the southern most termini, extends north along Beulah Road to 
Interstate 10, then further north to US29 (in the Quintette Road vicinity). 
 
The Project was initiated in 2007 following the inception of the Escambia County 
Midwest Optional Sector Plan (Sector Plan) that justified the need for a new “limited 
access roadway with Interstate Interchange.” County Staff, through Planning Board and 
Board of County Commission approval, then instituted a Corridor Preservation 
Ordinance found in the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan and Land Development 
Code (LDC Ordinance 2007-81) in efforts to minimize the local financial lift once the 
Project moved into the Right-Of-Way Acquisition and subsequent Construction Phase. 
Due to the infancy of the Sector Plan and without any substantial data or results of the 
necessary Corridor Selection Study, the Ordinance created a 300’ Preservation Overlay 
for the future roadway. However, the County is currently finalizing the Corridor Selection 
Study, and recently received the proposed typical cross sections / right-of-way widths 
needed for the future roadway; the consultants are recommending two different cross 
sections. The width proposed for the North Segment (I-10 north to US29) is 225’, and 
the width proposed for the South Segment (Nine Mile Road to I-10) is 104.5’. It is the 
South Segment specifically abuts the subject site. Attached is the document detailing 
the cross sections.  
 
In conclusion, TTO Staff recognizes that, though LDC Ordinance 2007-81 details a 300’ 
Preservation Overlay, in receipt of the proposed cross sections that the need to 
preserve 300’ for the South Segment seems unjustified at this point. TTO Staff 
recommends that the Planning Board and Board of County Commissioners consider 
directing Staff to amend the Ordinance upon completion of the Corridor Selection Study 

Page 4 of 8 



LSA 2016-03 – 11975 Beulah Road 

(expected for completion Summer 2017). TTO Staff does not oppose the map 
amendment or rezoning, only if the Boards would consider reducing the 300’ 
preservation width to a width of 104.5’ for the South Segment. 
 
Please note that TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so 
the comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process. 

Public School Facilities.   
CP Policy ICE 1.3.1  Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facility Planning.  In 
cooperation with the School Board and the local governments within Escambia County, 
the County will implement the Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facility Planning 
(herein Interlocal Agreement) that establishes procedures for coordination and sharing 
of information, planning processes, and  implementation. 
Analysis: Representatives from the Escambia County School District will review and 
comment on all proposals that could have an impact in the projected school capacities 
and LOS.  
Analysis of Suitability of Amendment for Proposed Use: 
The suitability of a Future Land Use map amendment for its proposed use requires an 
analysis of the characteristics of the site and its resources relative to Comprehensive 
Plan (CP) goals, objectives, and policies.  For these purposes, suitability is the degree 
to which the existing characteristics and limitations of land and water are compatible 
with the proposed use or development.  Compliance with specific regulations and 
standards established by Escambia County, including those for public facilities and 
services, are evaluated during the development review processes prescribed by the 
LDC for approval of proposed development. 

Impact on Land Use. 
CP Policy FLU 1.3.1  Future Land Use Categories.  General descriptions, range of 
allowable uses, and residential densities and non-residential intensities for all future land 
use categories in Escambia County.  

Analysis: The current I FLU is intended for a mix of industrial development and 
ancillary office and commercial uses that are deemed to be compatible with adjacent or 
nearby properties. Industrial areas shall facilitate continued industrial operations within 
the County and provide jobs and employment security for present and future residents. 
Range of allowable uses include light to intensive industrial, ancillary retail and office. 
No new residential development is allowed.  
The proposed MU-S FLU is intended for a mix of residential and non-residential uses 
while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and 
suburban land uses. Range of allowable uses includes residential, retail services, 
professional office, and recreational facilities, public and civic. The residential density 
has a maximum of 25 dwelling per acre and maximum intensity 1.0 floor area ration.   
Approval of the amendment would allow residential uses and a range of activities such 

Page 5 of 8 



LSA 2016-03 – 11975 Beulah Road 

as retail services and office.  

Impact on Wellheads. 
CP Policy CON 1.4.1  Wellhead Protection.  Escambia County will provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current and future 
public water supplies. The provisions will establish specific wellhead protection areas 
and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited activities and materials, within 
those areas. 

Analysis: Further evaluation by the Environmental Division and ECUA will be required 
to ensure standards for wellhead protection areas will be maintained. Once the project 
is submitted, all of the LOS will be evaluated during the Site Plan Review process. 

Impact on Historically Significant Sites. 
CP Policy FLU 1.2.1  State Assistance.  Escambia County will utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in the 
identification of archeological and/or historic sites or structures within the County and will 
utilize guidance, direction, and technical assistance received from this agency. 

Analysis: The applicant stated it will assist in any way possible, however did not 
provide any site requested information from the State of Florida Division of Historical 
Resources (DHR), or the University of West Florida to identify any historic or 
archaeological resources.   
 
Staff was not provided with any historical information from the applicant. 
 
Impact on the Natural Environment. 
CP Policy CON 1.1.2  Wetland and Habitat Indicators.  Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County Soils 
Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s (FFWCC) 
LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands or listed wildlife 
habitat in the review of applications for development approval.  
CP Policy CON 1.1.6  Habitat Protection. Escambia County will coordinate with the 
FDEP, FFWCC, and other state or federal agencies so as to provide the fullest 
protection to marine or wildlife habitats that may be impacted by existing or proposed 
development within the County. 
CP Policy CON 1.3.1  Stormwater Management. Escambia County will protect surface 
water quality by implementing the stormwater management policies of the Infrastructure 
Element to improve existing stormwater management systems and ensure the provision 
of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for such facilities. 
CP Policy CON 1.3.6  Wetland Development Provisions. Development in wetlands 
will not be allowed unless sufficient uplands do not exist to avoid a taking.  In this case, 
development in wetlands will be restricted to allow residential density uses as indicated 
by the LDC: 

Page 6 of 8 



LSA 2016-03 – 11975 Beulah Road 

CP CON 1.5.4 Extraction and Reclamation Review. Escambia County will subject all new 
or expanded resource extraction and reclamation activities to a mandatory development 
review process to assess technical standards for public safety, environmental protection, 
and engineering design.  

CP Policy CON 1.6.3 Tree Protection.  Escambia County will protect trees through 
LDC provisions. 

 
Analysis: The applicant has provided staff with wetlands information from County GIS. 
Staff’s review of the County’s GIS layer shows a large amount of wetlands on the 
northern and eastern side of the parcel. The applicant must ensure that all of the 
required State and Federal agencies are contacted and that the required permits are 
obtained. The presence of sensitive lands on site may require a more in-depth 
evaluation by the agencies involved. Escambia County staff will evaluate the proposed 
project to ensure all of the standards for wetlands protection indicated in the LDC, are 
met. Once the project is formally submitted, it will be evaluated during the Site Plan 
Review process. 
 
SUMMARY: The proposed project shall avoid any potential impacts to environmentally 
sensitive areas and should preserve the natural function of wetlands and natural 
resources on the subject parcel. Staff will need a more in-depth evaluation of the land to 
conclude that the proposed development could satisfy all of the requirements listed 
within the suitability analysis. 
 

CP Objective FLU 1.3 Future Land Use Map Designations.  Designate land uses on 
the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, compact development in 
urban areas, and support development compatible with the protection and preservation 
of rural areas.” 
Analysis: The proposed amendment is in close proximity to the extensive infrastructure 
that is accessed by other similar uses within the area. The development promotes the 
principle of good development by taking advantage of an existing roads and interstate 
highway as a close proximity for development. As a result of the proximity to similar 
existing uses, the proposed amendment would reduce transportation costs, including 
the per capita costs to consumers to own and operate vehicles, road and parking facility 
costs, traffic accidents and pollution emissions.  
 
The proposed amendment is part of a strategy directing this type of development to the 
central part of the county, away from sensitive coastal areas to the South, and USDA 
prime soils and farmlands to the North. The proposed Industrial use expansion will 
direct economic growth and the associated land development to an area that will 
complement the existing growth patterns of development in the vicinity of the property, 
thereby minimizing the adverse impacts to natural resources and the existing 
ecosystems.  
 
The proposed amendment will ensure that the proposed development is conducted in 
an efficient manner. Specifically, the proximity of the subject property to other existing   

Page 7 of 8 



LSA 2016-03 – 11975 Beulah Road 

development will provide for an efficient integration of infrastructure and services that 
will conserve both water and energy.     
 
As previously elaborated, the site has been evaluated for potable water, sanitary sewer, 
solid waste disposal, stormwater management, and traffic concurrency. The adopted 
levels of service would appear to be maintained with the proposed subdivision 
development of the parcel. If the amendment is approved, the parcel must go through 
the quasi-judicial rezoning process. The completed application packet will then be 
reviewed and evaluated for concurrency as part of the Site Development Review 
process. 
 

Page 8 of 8 



3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Development Services Manager 
   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: David Forte, Division Manager 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE:  January 19, 2017 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – LSA-2016-03 & Z-

2016-11 
 
TTO Staff has reviewed the Large Scale Amendment (LSA)-2016-03 and Rezoning 
Case (Z)-2016-11, Beulah Road at I-10, agenda item for the upcoming Planning Board 
meeting scheduled for February 7, 2017. Please see the below comments. 

 
Upon review of LSA-2016-03 and Z-2016-11, TTO Staff provides the following 

information regarding an existing programmed regional and local transportation project 
commonly known as the Escambia County Beulah Beltway / I-10 Interchange Project 
(Project). This project is expected to impact the subject site, as well as potentially other 
properties within the vicinity once the project moves into the future Right-Of-Way and 
Construction Phases. The Project limits as identified in the Florida-Alabama 
Transportation Planning Organization Long Range Transportation Plan begins at the 
Nine Mile Road at the southern most termini, extends north along Beulah Road to 
Interstate 10, then further north to US29 (in the Quintette Road vicinity).  

 
The Project was initiated in 2007 following the inception of the Escambia County 

Midwest Optional Sector Plan (Sector Plan) that justified the need for a new “limited 
access roadway with Interstate Interchange.” County Staff, through Planning Board and 
Board of County Commission approval, then instituted a Corridor Preservation 
Ordinance found in the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan and Land Development 
Code (LDC Ordinance 2007-81) in efforts to minimize the local financial lift once the 
Project moved into the Right-Of-Way Acquisition and subsequent Construction Phase. 
Due to the infancy of the Sector Plan and without any substantial data or results of the 
necessary Corridor Selection Study, the Ordinance created a 300’ Preservation Overlay 
for the future roadway. However, the County is currently finalizing the Corridor Selection 
Study, and recently received the proposed typical cross sections / right-of-way widths 
needed for the future roadway; the consultants are recommending two different cross 
sections. The width proposed for the North Segment (I-10 north to US29) is 225’, and 
the width proposed for the South Segment (Nine Mile Road to I-10) is 104.5’. It is the 



South Segment specifically abuts the subject site. Attached is the document detailing 
the cross sections… 

 
In conclusion, TTO Staff recognizes that, though LDC Ordinance 2007-81 details 

a 300’ Preservation Overlay, in receipt of the proposed cross sections that the need to 
preserve 300’ for the South Segment seems unjustified at this point. TTO Staff 
recommends that the Planning Board and Board of County Commissioners consider 
directing Staff to amend the Ordinance upon completion of the Corridor Selection Study 
(expected for completion Summer 2017). TTO Staff does not oppose the map 
amendment or rezoning, only if the Boards would consider reducing the 300’ 
preservation width to a width of 104.5’ for the South Segment. 
 
Please note that TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so 
the comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process.  
 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 
 





























































14-1N-31

4-2N-31

7-1N-31

4-1N-31

5-2N-31

8-2N-31 9-2N-31
7-2N-31

9-1N-31

3-1N-31 2-1N-31

8-1N-31

5-1N-31

6-2N-311-2N-32

6-1N-31

2-2N-323-2N-32

9-2N-32

4-2N-32

38-2N-31

39-2N-31

11-2N-32

31-1N-3132-1N-31

28-2N-31

19-1N-31

1-1N-31

27-1N-31

38-1N-31

12-2N-32

36-1N-32

27-2N-31

34-3N-32

10-2N-32

27-3N-31

24-2N-31

15-2N-31

10-2N-31

19-2N-31

33-2N-31

35-3N-32

18-1N-31

22-2N-31

36-3N-32

30-1N-31

16-2N-31
18-2N-31

10-1N-31

29-2N-31

27-3N-32

31-2N-31

36-1N-31

28-3N-32

30-2N-31

17-2N-31

23-1N-31

16-1N-31

34-1N-31

22-1N-31

26-2N-31

13-2N-32

21-1N-30

29-3N-31

35-2N-31

21-2N-31

33-1N-31

33-3N-3132-3N-31

25-3N-32

25-2N-31

36-2N-31

22-3N-31

14-2N-32

21-1N-31

28-3N-31

29-1N-31

26-3N-32

20-2N-31

30-3N-31

31-3N-31

37-1N-31

33-3N-32

20-1N-31

34-2N-31

23-2N-31

37-2N-31

24-1N-31

17-1N-31

32-2N-31

35-1N-31

20-1N-30
28-1N-31

23-3N-31
21-3N-31

25-1N-32

20-3N-31

12-1N-31

34-3N-31

3-2N-31

11-1N-30

24-2N-32

19-3N-3124-3N-32

26-3N-31

2-1S-32

23-3N-32

31-2N-30

11-1N-31

1-1S-32

24-1N-32

22-3N-32

30-2N-30

13-1N-30

6-1S-31

21-3N-32

19-2N-30

13-2N-31

7-2N-30

5-1S-31

18-2N-30

36-3N-31

14-2N-31

35-1N-32

15-2N-32

4-1S-31

15-1N-31

11-2N-31

4-1N-30

13-1N-32

3-1S-31

12-2N-31

30-1N-30

40-2N-31

6-2N-30

25-2N-32

2-1S-31 1-1S-31

6-1N-30

25-1N-31

1-2N-31

9-1S-30

38-1N-30

12-1N-30

13-1N-31

35-3N-31

3-1N-30

3-1S-32

20-3N-32

23-2N-32

39-1N-31

29-3N-32

32-3N-32

5-2N-32

24-3N-31

26-1N-32

8-2N-32

14-3N-31

36-2N-32

16-2N-32

37-3N-31

22-1N-30

12-1N-32

12-1N-32

8-1S-30

26-1N-31

15-3N-31

36-2N-32

2-2N-31

13-3N-31

1-1N-32

1-1N-32

1-1N-32

MOLINO RD  
N HIGHWAY 95A    

HIGHWAY 196    

BEULAH RD  

HI
GH

WA
Y 9

9  
  

JA
CK

S B
RA

NC
H 

RD
  

S H
IG

HW
AY

 97
    

HIGHWAY 97    

HI
GH

WA
Y 2

97
A  

  

TATE RD  

S HIGHWAY 95A    
GIBSON RD  

INTERSTATE 10    

W KINGSFIELD RD  

SC
HA

AG
 R

D 
 

FRANK REEDER RD  

NEAL RD  

MUSCOGEE RD  

E QUINTETTE RD  

BECKS LAKE RD  

E KINGSFIELD RD  

BRICKYARD RD  

RIV
ER

 AN
NE

X R
D  

PAULINE ST  

SU
NS

HI
NE

 H
ILL

 R
D 

 

CH
ES

TN
UT

 R
D 

 

MCKENZIE RD  

N 
HI

GH
WA

Y 2
9  

  

SC
HI

FK
O 

RD
  

WILLIAMS DITCH RD  

BRICKTON RD  

CEDARTOWN RD  

WELL LINE RD  

JO
HN

 W
ILS

ON
 R

D 
 

W ROBERTS RD  

PIN
E F

OR
ES

T R
D 

 

ST
EF

AN
I R

D 
 

BARTH RD  

EDEN LN  

W QUINTETTE RD  

FAIRGROUND RD  

BA
RR

IN
EA

U 
LN

  

EFFIE RD  

AN
GU

S L
N 

 

EL
NA

 R
D 

 

S HIGHWAY 29    

NO
WA

K R
D 

 

KATHLEEN AVE  

ST
AC

EY
 R

D 
 

DEVINE FARM RD  W TEN MILE RD  

CEDAR TREE LN  

LU
LA

 R
D 

 

BOOKER ST  

BA
RR

IN
EA

U 
PA

RK
 SC

HO
OL

 R
D 

 

CANDY LN  

LUTH RD  

SETTLES RD  

PETTY DR  

CHANCE RD  

KECK RD  

LA
WS

ON
 LN

  

MA
DR

ID
 R

D 
 

MATHISON RD  

VA
NT

AG
E R

D 
 

MORRIS AVE  

COUNTRI LN  

STOUT RD  

AR
GL

E R
D 

 

RY
AL

E R
D 

 

ARENA RD  

CHIPPENDALE RD  

EL
DE

R 
LN

  
HA

ND
Y R

D 
 

FIL
LY

 R
D 

 

NI
CH

OL
SO

N 
DR

  

N CHIPPER RD  

LA
KE

 D
R 

 

E C
HIPPER RD  

VIR
EC

EN
T R

D 
 

MEHARG RD  

OMEGA DR  

SHERRILANE DR  

MINTZ LN  

LANK RD  

TAYLOR ST  

BRITT RD  

BA
LB

OA
 R

D 
 

CLYMIL DR  

UPLAND RD  

GA
IN

EY
 LN

  

NANCY LN  

STRAUGHN RD  

GREEN HILLS RD  

AN
DA

LU
SIA

 R
D 

 FA
RG

O 
RD

  

RIVER BEND RD  

PIN
E T

OP
 LN

  

ANGUS CIR  

CREST LN  

DEERFOOT LN  

CH
AL

KE
R 

RD
  

RIDGE WAY  

GARMAN RD  

CH
AV

ER
S R

D 
 

HIC
KS

 ST
  

SAN CARLOS RD  

AYER ST  

BL
UE

 BE
RR

Y L
N 

 

MO
NI

CA
 LN

  

RO
CK

EY
 BR

AN
CH

 R
D 

 

BLANC LN  

WEL
CO

ME R
D  

LAKE HEIGHTS RD  

SUNCREST LN  

QU
IN

TE
TT

E L
N 

 

BR
EN

TC
O 

RD
  

BONANZA DR  

RAWHIDE LN  

TOBIAS RD  

CR
EE

KW
OO

D 
DR

  

WI
ND

HA
M 

DR
  

MO
NR

OE
 AV

E  

HILO TRL  

SU
CC

ES
S D

R  

OREO DR  

LO
UI

S S
T  

JA
Y R

D 
 

PIN
EY

 LN
  

DAYLILY RD  

HO
ME

PL
AC

E L
N 

 

PINEBROOK CIR  

HI
LL

OC
K D

R 
 

ISA
AC

S L
N 

 

STONE BLVD  

PERDIDO LAKE RD  

SPICEWOOD RD  

JOSH LN  

AB
RA

MO
VIC

H 
LN

  

RITA RD  

EAGLE ST  

FR
AN

K A
RD

 R
D 

 

COOLEY RD  

SU
NS

ET
 VI

EW
 LN

  

BARTH LN  

COWETA RD  

EV
ER

S H
VN

  

RI
DD

LE
 R

D 
 

LIB
RA

 LN
  

CR
OC

KE
TT

 ST
  

GINA DR  

RACER LN  

TU
TT

LE
 LN

  

JONAH ST  

CARLA DR  

KENT LN  BROOKWOOD PL  

PA
RA

LL
EL

 R
D 

 

LE
VI 

RD
  

HUNTERS HILL LN  

FE
LD

ON
 LN

  

SO
LA

RI
 FA

RM
 R

D 
 

VIS
TA

 LN
  

MUSTANG DR  

BLEU LN  

SMITHFIELD LN  

BROKEN ARROW LN  

BLACKBERRY LN  

EL
ER

AL
 D

R 
 

DOLAN DR  

PINE LANE DR  

WE
BB

 ST
  

PINEDALE LN  

MORGAN CEMETERY RD  

GREENBERRY DR  

SEAN RD  

VEAZEY LN  

BOO LN  

BRANCH XING  

GREEN TREE CIR  

BUMPY RD  

MARGE LN  
OA

K H
AV

EN
 R

D 
 

BY
RO

N P
L  

TILLAGE DR  

DURDEN DR  

ASPEN LN  

BETTS AVE  

BROOKHILLS DR  

SA
MA

NT
HA

 D
R 

 

LU
CI

LL
E S

T  

DUXBURY AVE  

RI
TT

EN
BE

RR
Y R

D 
 

PO
RT

OB
EL

LA
 PL

  

CHESHIRE DR  
ABERDEEN DR  

CA
RL

ISL
E D

R 
 

GU
LS

BY
 LN

  

LAVANDA LN  

WAREHAM WAY  

LY
NN

DA
LE

 D
R 

 

ROUGE LN  

VICTORY RD  

PATCH LN  

ODOM RD  

GASTON LN  

ME
AN

DE
R 

CI
R 

 

RY
AL

E R
D 

 

MOLINO RD  

MA
DR

ID
 R

D 
 

INTERSTATE 10    

CH
ES

TN
UT

 R
D 

 

CEDAR TREE LN  

TA
TE

 R
D 

 
HA

ND
Y R

D 
 

AID TO BELTWAY LAND DESCRIPTION
1 0 10.5 Miles .

"This map was prepared by the Escambia County GIS Division and is provided 
for information purposes only. It is not to be used for development of construction 

plans or any type of engineering services based on the information depicted 
herein and is maintained for the function of this office only.  It is not intended for 
conveyance, nor is it a survey.  The data is not guaranteed accurate or suitable 

for any use other than that for which it was gathered."

Legend
STREETS
ESCAMBIA PLSS
PROPOSED BELTWAY CL
300' WIDE SWATH FOR BELTWAY
Protected Areas Esc GIS
Protected Zones - Extensions





 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2017-___ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
PART II OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED; 
AMENDING CHAPTER 7, “THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT,” 
POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO PROVIDE FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE  2030 
FUTURE LAND USE MAP, CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE 
CATEGORY OF A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 1N, 
RANGE 31W, PARCEL NUMBER 2101-000-001  TOTALING 56.80 (+/-) 
ACRES, LOCATED EAST OF ISAACS LANE, FROM INDUSTRIAL (I) 
TO MIXED USE SUBURBAN (MU-S); PROVIDING FOR A TITLE; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN 
THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County 
adopted its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and  
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County 
Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce 
comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and 
forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to approve 
changes (amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that 
the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Escambia County, Florida, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Purpose and Intent 
 
This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the 
authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, 
Florida Statutes. 
 
Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
 
This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled – "Large Scale Amendment 
2016-03."   
 
 
 
PB: 02-07-17 Page 1 
Re: LSA-2016-03 
Draft 2 

 



 
Section 3.  Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map 
 
The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the 
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 
2030, as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all 
notations, references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the 
following future land use changes: 
 

A parcel within Section 34, Township 1N, Range 31W, parcel number 
2101-000-001 and totaling 56.80 (+/-) acres, located East of Isaacs Lane, 
as more particularly described in the Legal Description produced by 
Dewberry Preble-Rish, George Gibson P.S.M. as Exhibit A, from Industrial 
(I) to Mixed Use Suburban (MU-S).  

 

Section 4.     Severability 
 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect 
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 5. Inclusion in the Code 
 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that 
the sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or 
relettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PB: 02-07-17 Page 2 
Re: LSA-2016-03 
Draft 2 

 



Section 6.  Effective Date 

Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c)(4), Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not 
become effective until 31 days after the Department of Economic Opportunity notifies 
Escambia County that the plan amendment package is complete.  If timely challenged, 
this Ordinance shall not become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity 
or the Administration Commission enters a final order determining the Ordinance to be 
in compliance.     

DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2017. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

By: _________________________________ 
D. B. Underhill, Chairman 

ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS 
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 

By: ___________________________   
Deputy Clerk 

(SEAL) 

ENACTED: 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 

PB: 02-07-17 Page 3 
Re: LSA-2016-03 
Draft 2 



Exhibit A



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. B.           
Meeting Date: 02/07/2017  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending LDC

Chapter 2 Development and Compliance Review
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 2,
Development and Compliance Review
That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC) Chapter 2, Development
and Compliance Review, Article 6, Special Conditions and Circumstances, amending
Section 2-6.2 through Section 2-6.10 to require additional public notification for certain
quasi-judicial hearings, appeals of administrative decisions, variances, conditional uses,
substantial hardship variances, and other reviews; amending Chapter 2, Development
and Compliance Review, Article 7, LDC and Comprehensive Plan Amendment,
amending Section 2-7.1 through Section 2-7.3 to require additional public notification for
zoning and future land use map amendments.

BACKGROUND:
The BCC directed that the Development Services Department expand the radius of
minimum notification to property owners from 500’ to 2500’ to ensure that citizens are
informed of certain development proposals and to allow for additional public involvement
in the development process.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are
attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:



The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the LDC, will be filed with the Department of State following
adoption by the board.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with  the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance





 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2017-____ 1 
 2 
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 4 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 5 
AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 2, DEVELOPMENT AND 6 
COMPLIANCE REVIEW, ARTICLE 6, SPECIAL CONDITIONS AND 7 
CIRCUMSTANCES, AMENDING SECTION 2-6.2 THROUGH SECTION 8 
2-6.10 TO REQUIRE ADDITIONAL PUBLIC NOTIFICATION FOR 9 
CERTAIN QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARINGS, APPEALS OF 10 
ADMINISTRATIVE DECISIONS, VARIANCES, CONDITIONAL USES, 11 
SUBSTANTIAL HARDSHIP VARIANCES, AND OTHER REVIEWS; 12 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2, DEVELOPMENT AND COMPLIANCE 13 
REVIEW, ARTICLE 7 LDC AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 14 
AMENDMENTS, AMENDING SECTION 2-7.1 THROUGH SECTION 2-15 
7.3 TO REQUIRE ADDITIONAL PUBLIC NOTIFICATION FOR ZONING 16 
AND FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENTS; PROVIDING FOR 17 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE AND 18 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 19 
 20 

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 125, Florida 21 
Statutes, conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed 22 
to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and  23 

WHEREAS, on October 6, 2016, the Board of County Commissioners directed that 24 
the Development Services Department expand the radius of minimum notification to 25 
property owners from 500’ to 2500’ to ensure that citizens are informed of certain 26 
development proposals and to allow for additional public involvement in the 27 
development process; and 28 

WHEREAS, the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners further finds 29 
that modifying the notification requirements in Chapter 2 of the Land Development Code 30 
is necessary for efficiency of  public notification for land use actions and promotes 31 
public participation in the development process; and  32 

WHEREAS, through its Land Development Code, the Escambia County Board of  33 
County Commissioners desires to preserve the county as a desirable community in 34 
which to live, vacation and do business;  35 
 36 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 37 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 38 
 39 
Section 1. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 40 
Code of Escambia County, Chapter 2, Article 6, Section 2-6.2 through Section 2-6.10 41 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 1 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

are hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words stricken are 1 
deletions): 2 
 3 

Sec. 2-6.2 - Review by quasi-judicial hearing.  4 

Quasi-judicial hearings are required for final determinations on the following 5 
applications: Appeals of administrative decisions, variances, conditional uses, 6 
substantial hardship variances and other reviews as prescribed within this article.  7 

Public notification is required as further outlined in this Article. The cost of the 8 
notification is to be borne by the applicant requesting review.  9 

 10 
Sec. 2-6.3  Variance of LDC standards.  11 
 12 
(a) General. An applicant may request a variance to specified provisions of the LDC.  13 
 14 

A variance authorizes site use in a manner that is not otherwise allowed by the 15 
dimensional or physical requirements of the LDC, but a variance cannot 16 
authorize uses that are prohibited by zoning or remedy general hardship 17 
conditions that extend to other sites.  18 
 19 
Minor variances of 20% or less that are of mutual benefit to the public and the 20 
applicant are evaluated by the Planning Official. All other variances shall be 21 
evaluated as substantial hardships through quasi-judicial public hearing review 22 
by the Board of Adjustment (BOA) or by the SRIA for Pensacola Beach 23 
properties.  24 
 25 

Limits on variances. Variances are available and may be granted only 26 
for the LDC standards that specifically provide the option and only as 27 
allowed by the provisions of the LDC. No variances are available to any 28 
provisions of chapters 1, 2, or 6. Additionally, variances cannot be granted 29 
to any provisions that establish the allowable uses or densities in a zoning 30 
district or to any conditions of approval imposed by an approving authority.  31 
 32 
Design and construction of swimming pools at Pensacola beach must take 33 
into consideration the existing environmental conditions on a barrier island 34 
location. Swimming pools to be constructed outside of established building 35 
setback lines must be approved by the SRIA Board only, without the need 36 
for further action by the BOA.  37 
 38 

(b) General variance conditions. All variances shall satisfy the following conditions:  39 
 40 

(1) Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, 41 
structure or building and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or 42 
buildings in the same zoning district.  43 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 2 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

(2) The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the 1 
applicant.  2 

(3) Granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special 3 
privilege that is denied by this land development code to other lands, 4 
buildings or structures in the same zoning district.  5 

(4) Strict application of the provisions of the land development code would 6 
deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the 7 
same zoning district under the terms of the land development code and would 8 
create an unnecessary and undue hardship on the applicant.  9 

(5) The variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the 10 
reasonable use of the land, building or structure.  11 

(6) The granting of the variance will be consistent with the general intent and 12 
purpose of the land development code and that such variance will not be 13 
injurious to the area or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 14 

 15 
(7) Public participation. Prior to any hearing to consider a variance, the clerk of 16 

the reviewing board shall provide adequate public notice.  17 
 18 

a. Publication.  At least ten days prior to the hearing, notice shall be 19 
published in a newspaper of general circulation in Escambia County. 20 

b. Site sign.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, a sign no smaller than 21 
20 inches by 30 inches shall be prominently posted on, or as near as 22 
practicable to, the subject property and shall be clearly readable from 23 
the nearest public right-of-way.  24 

c. Notification.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, notification shall be 25 
sent via U.S. mail to the address registered with the property appraiser 26 
for each owner of real property with any portion of the property located 27 
within 2500 feet of the subject property. The cost of the mailing is to be 28 
borne by the applicant.  29 

 30 
(c) Substantial hardship variance provisions. An applicant may request a substantial 31 

hardship variance providing limited relief for a hardship arising from conditions 32 
peculiar to a specific property. The process to approve a substantial hardship 33 
variance is established here for the BOA and SRIA to consider whether there is a 34 
deficiency in real property that creates a substantial undue hardship for the property 35 
owner by preventing development of the property in compliance with a LDC standard 36 
and whether a requested adjustment in the standard should compensate for that 37 
deficiency.  38 

 39 
(1) Application. An application for substantial hardship variance approval shall 40 

be submitted for compliance review to the clerk of the reviewing board within 41 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 3 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

the deadline stated in the application. A pre-application meeting with staff is 1 
recommended.  2 

(2) Public participation. Prior to any hearing to consider a substantial hardship 3 
variance, the clerk of the reviewing board shall provide adequate public 4 
notice.  5 

 6 
a. Publication.  At least ten days prior to the hearing, notice shall be 7 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in Escambia County. 8 

b. Site sign.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, a sign no smaller than 9 
20 inches by 30 inches shall be prominently posted on, or as near as 10 
practicable to, the subject property and shall be clearly readable from 11 
the nearest public right-of-way.  12 

c. Notification.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, notification shall be 13 
sent via U.S. mail to the address registered with the property appraiser 14 
for each owner of real property with any portion of the property located 15 
within 2500 feet of the subject property. The cost of the mailing is to be 16 
borne by the applicant.  17 

 18 
(3) Compliance review. The BOA or SRIA shall conduct a quasi-judicial public 19 

hearing as noticed to consider the requested substantial hardship variance 20 
according to the provisions of this article. The applicant must establish the 21 
presence of the following:  22 

 23 
a.  Exceptional conditions. There are exceptional conditions or 24 

circumstances that are unique to the land in question, not ordinarily found 25 
on other lands in the vicinity and not a result of the owner’s intentional 26 
action. Unique conditions or circumstances include exceptional 27 
narrowness, shallowness, shape, or topographic conditions of the land or 28 
the presence of environmentally sensitive lands in or around the land.  29 

b. Substantial hardship. Under the unique land conditions or circumstances 30 
prompting the variance request, the strict application of LDC standards 31 
causes an exceptional practical difficulty or undue physical hardship to the 32 
owner that effectively prohibits a permissible principal use or denies rights 33 
and privileges legally enjoyed by owners of other properties in the vicinity 34 
or within the same zoning district.  35 

 36 
(4) Final determination.  37 

a.  Action of board. If the reviewing board finds from the established record 38 
of the hearing that there is a compelling demonstration by the applicant of 39 
competent substantial evidence proving the required conditions, the board 40 
shall grant a variance. However, a variance may only be granted to the 41 
extent supported by the evidence presented.  42 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 4 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

b.  Period of valid approval. If not otherwise reduced as a condition of 1 
approval, a variance is valid for two years from the date of approval. If 2 
within that period the variance is not part of an approved site development 3 
application or one continuing in good faith as determined by the Planning 4 
Official and no application for its extension has been submitted according 5 
to the provisions of this article, the variance approval expires and is void. 6 
Once the variance is part of an approved site development plan, however, 7 
the variance will remain valid through the approved plan.  8 

 9 
c.  Other conditions of approval. In granting a variance, the reviewing 10 

board shall have the authority to attach any conditions directly related to 11 
the variance as the board may find necessary for satisfaction of the 12 
variance conditions and preservation of the intent of the subject standard. 13 

 14 
Sec. 2-6.4 Conditional uses.  15 
 16 
(a) General. The LDC may conditionally allow other uses in addition to the permitted 17 

uses within each zoning district. Conditions that may justify conditional use approval 18 
are evaluated through quasi-judicial public hearing review by the Board of 19 
Adjustment (BOA), the Santa Rosa Island Authority (SRIA) for Pensacola Beach 20 
properties, or the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for certain uses as noted 21 
in the applicable zoning district.  22 

 23 
(b) Limits on conditional uses. Conditional uses are subject to the following 24 

limitations:  25 
 26 

(1) Availability. Conditional uses are available and may be granted only to land 27 
for which that option is specifically provided by the applicable zoning district 28 
or other provisions of the LDC.  29 

(2) Invalid reasons. Nonconforming, unapproved, or unlawful uses, structures, 30 
or conditions are not considered special conditions or other valid reasons for 31 
granting any conditional use.  32 

(3) Site specific. A conditional use can only be granted based on a site-specific 33 
review of an individual lot of record or development parcel. Conditional uses 34 
are not available to subdivisions or other groups of individually developed 35 
lots.  36 

(4) Multiple uses. If more than one conditional use is proposed, the conditions 37 
shall be addressed for each use.  38 

 39 
(c) Conditional use provisions.  40 
 41 

(1) Application. Application for conditional use approval shall be submitted for 42 
compliance review to the clerk of the reviewing board within the time period 43 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 5 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

stated in the application. A pre-application meeting with staff for the board is 1 
recommended.  2 

 3 
(2) Public participation. Hearings to consider a conditional use shall be open to 4 

the public. Prior to any hearing to consider a conditional use, the county shall 5 
provide reasonable notice to the public as required by Florida Statutes.  6 

 7 
a. Publication.  At least ten days prior to the hearing, notice shall be 8 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in Escambia County. 9 

b. Site sign.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, a sign no smaller than 10 
20 inches by 30 inches shall be prominently posted on, or as near as 11 
practicable to, the subject property and shall be clearly readable from 12 
the nearest public right-of-way.  13 

c. Notification.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, notification shall be 14 
sent via U.S. mail to the address registered with the property appraiser 15 
for each owner of real property with any portion of the property located 16 
within 2500 feet of the subject property. The cost of the mailing is to be 17 
borne by the applicant.  18 

 19 
(3) Compliance Review. The reviewing board shall conduct the quasi-judicial 20 

public hearing to consider the requested conditional use. The applicant has 21 
the burden of presenting competent substantial evidence that establishes 22 
each of the following conditions:  23 

 24 
a. General compatibility. The proposed use can be conducted and 25 

operated in a manner that is compatible with adjacent properties and other 26 
properties in the immediate area.  27 

b. Facilities and services. Public facilities and services, especially those 28 
with adopted levels of service, will be available, and will provide adequate 29 
capacity to serve the proposed use consistent with capacity requirements. 30 

c. On-site circulation. Ingress to and egress from the site and its structures 31 
will be sufficient, particularly regarding vehicle and pedestrian safety and 32 
convenience, efficient traffic flow and control, on-site parking and loading, 33 
and emergency vehicle access.  34 

d. Nuisances and hazards. The scale, intensity, and operation of the use will 35 
not generate unreasonable noise, glare, dust, smoke, odor, vibration, 36 
electrical interference, or other nuisances or hazards for adjoining 37 
properties and other properties in the immediate area.  38 

e. Solid waste. All on-site solid waste containers will be appropriately located 39 
for functional access, limited off-site visibility and minimal odor and other 40 
nuisance impacts.  41 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 6 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

f. Screening and buffering. Where not otherwise required by the LDC, 1 
screening and buffering will be provided if appropriate to the proposed use 2 
and site.  3 

g. Signs and lighting. All exterior signs and lights, whether attached or 4 
freestanding, will be compatible with adjoining properties and other 5 
properties in the immediate area, especially regarding glare and traffic 6 
safety.  7 

h. Site characteristics. The size, shape, location and topography of the site 8 
appear adequate to accommodate the proposed use, including setbacks, 9 
intensity, bulk, height, open space and aesthetic considerations.  10 

i. Use requirements. The proposed use complies with any additional 11 
conditional use requirements of the applicable zoning district, use, or other 12 
provisions of the LDC.  13 

 14 
(4) Final determination.  15 
 16 

a.  Action of board. If the reviewing board finds from the record of the 17 
hearing that the applicant has presented competent substantial evidence 18 
proving the required conditions, the board shall grant a conditional use, 19 
unless the board finds from the evidence presented that granting the 20 
conditional use will be adverse to the public interest.  21 

b. Period of valid approval. A conditional use approval is valid for a period 22 
of four years from the date of approval. If within that period the conditional 23 
use is not part of an approved site development application or one 24 
continuing in good faith review as determined by the Planning Official, the 25 
conditional use approval expires and is void. No extension of the initial 26 
approval is available. However, once the conditional use is part of an 27 
approved site development plan, the conditional use approval will remain 28 
valid through the approved plan.  29 

c. Other conditions of approval. In granting a conditional use, the reviewing 30 
board shall have the authority to attach any conditions directly related to 31 
the use as the board may find necessary for satisfaction of the conditional 32 
use conditions and preservation of the intent of the applicable zoning 33 
district. Such conditions include setbacks, height, impervious cover, total 34 
floor area, building orientation, screening, buffering, site signage and 35 
lighting, and hours of operation.  36 

 37 
Sec. 2-6.5  Extensions of review, approval, and use periods.  38 

(a) General. The LDC requires good faith efforts in adhering to its established periods, 39 
but extension of an eligible LDC time limit may be requested according to the 40 
provisions of this section whereby a landowner asserts that the limit does not 41 
anticipate legitimate delays in compliance. However, no applicant is automatically 42 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 7 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

entitled to any extension. Short-term (six-month) extensions are evaluated by the 1 
planning official, and longer extensions (one year) shall be evaluated through a 2 
quasi-judicial public hearing review by the BOA. These extension processes allow 3 
additional time for concluding the compliance review, developing an approved use, 4 
and continuing or reestablishing some uses.  5 

(b) Limits on extensions. Extensions to LDC periods are subject to the following 6 
limitations:  7 

(1) Availability. Extensions are available and may be granted only for LDC periods 8 
that specifically provide that option, only if a complete application for the 9 
extension was submitted prior to the expiration of the period for which the 10 
extension is requested, and only as otherwise allowed by the provisions of the 11 
LDC.  12 

(2) Approving authority. Extensions to any period not required by the LDC but 13 
imposed as a condition of approval by an approving authority cannot be granted 14 
by another approving authority.  15 

(3) Individual and multiple limits. An extension can only be granted based on a 16 
specific review of an individual period. If an extension of more than one period 17 
is requested, the extension criteria shall be evaluated for each limit.  18 

 19 
Sec. 2-6.6 - Medical hardship temporary use of manufactured homes.  20 

(a) General. Temporary placement of a manufactured (mobile) home or park trailer 21 
may be requested according to the provisions of this section when a landowner 22 
asserts that existing medical conditions require in-home care and an accessory 23 
dwelling to reasonably provide it. The manufactured home may be placed within any 24 
mainland zoning district to remedy a medical hardship according to the temporary 25 
use provisions of chapter 4, regardless of the density limits of the applicable zoning. 26 
The requirements to grant the temporary use of a manufactured home or park trailer 27 
as an accessory dwelling to provide in-home medical care is considered by the BOA 28 
in a quasi-judicial hearing whether conditions warrant such use.  29 

(b) Medical hardship temporary use.  30 

(1) Application. An application for approval of the medical hardship temporary use 31 
of a manufactured home or park trailer shall be submitted for compliance review 32 
to the clerk of the BOA within the time frame provided in the application. A pre-33 
application meeting with staff for the board is recommended. The applicant shall 34 
provide any authorized fees and the information required by the adopted 35 
medical hardship temporary use procedures. That information shall include a 36 
general site plan showing the proposed location of the manufactured home in 37 
relation to other site improvements and conditions and other documentation 38 
satisfying the medical hardship temporary use conditions established in this 39 
section.  40 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 8 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

(2) Public participation. Prior to any hearing to consider the medical hardship 1 
temporary use of a manufactured home or park trailer, the clerk of the BOA 2 
shall provide adequate public notice.  3 

a. Publication.  At least ten days prior to the hearing, notice shall be 4 
published in a newspaper of general circulation in Escambia County. 5 

b. Site sign.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, a sign no smaller than 6 
20 inches by 30 inches shall be prominently posted on, or as near as 7 
practicable to, the subject property and shall be clearly readable from 8 
the nearest public right-of-way.  9 

c. Notification.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, notification shall be 10 
sent via U.S. mail to the address registered with the property appraiser 11 
for each owner of real property with any portion of the property located 12 
within 2500 feet of the subject property. The cost of the mailing is to be 13 
borne by the applicant.  14 

(3) Compliance review. The BOA shall conduct a quasi-judicial public hearing as 15 
noticed to consider the requested medical hardship temporary use of a 16 
manufactured home or park trailer according to the provisions of this article. 17 
The applicant has the burden of presenting competent substantial evidence to 18 
the board that establishes each of the following conditions:  19 

a. Certified need. A Florida-licensed physician certifies in writing the medical 20 
need, specifying the extent of the need for in-home medical care and the 21 
approximate length of time for such in-home medical care.  22 

b. Minimum necessary. Conditions and circumstances make it difficult or 23 
impossible for the recipient and provider of medical care to reside in the 24 
same dwelling and the temporary accessory dwelling is the minimum 25 
necessary to provide relief of that medical hardship.  26 

c. Adequate public services. The manufactured home or park trailer will 27 
have adequate water, sewer, solid waste removal, and electric services 28 
available.  29 

d. Compatibility. The temporary use will not produce adverse impacts on the 30 
uses of surrounding properties.  31 

e. Standard conditions. The temporary use can comply with the applicable 32 
standards of chapter 4.  33 

(4) Final determination.  34 

a. Action of board. If the BOA determines from the established record of the 35 
hearing that there is a compelling demonstration by the applicant of 36 
competent substantial evidence proving the required conditions, the board 37 
shall grant the temporary use of a manufactured home.  38 

b. Period of valid approval. Approval of the medical hardship temporary use 39 
of a manufactured home or park trailer is valid for a period of one year from 40 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 9 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

the date of approval. If within that period the temporary use is not part of an 1 
approved site development application or one continuing on good-faith 2 
review as determined by the planning official, the temporary use approval is 3 
void. Once the temporary use is part of an approved site development plan, 4 
however, the use approval will remain valid through the approved plan.  5 

c. Period of use. The medical hardship temporary use of a manufactured 6 
home or park trailer is initially limited to two years from the date the 7 
certificate of occupancy for the home is issued. An extension to the period 8 
of use may be granted for a continuing medical need according to the 9 
extension provisions of this article. However, regardless of any extensions 10 
granted, whenever the medical hardship ends, the approval of the 11 
temporary placement and use of the manufactured home are void.  12 

d. Other conditions of approval. In granting temporary use of a 13 
manufactured home or park trailer, the BOA shall have the authority to 14 
attach any conditions directly related to the use as the board may find 15 
necessary for protection of the general public, satisfaction of the temporary 16 
use criteria, and preservation of the intent of the applicable zoning district. 17 
These conditions are in addition to any use-specific standards prescribed 18 
by chapter 4 for the temporary placement of a manufactured home.  19 

 20 
Sec. 2-6.7 Vested rights.  21 
 22 
(a) General. It is the intent of this section to provide a mechanism for the granting of an 23 

equitable vested right according to the provisions of this section when a landowner 24 
asserts that sufficient development activity, once lawful under applicable land use 25 
regulations but now contrary to their terms, has occurred so that the landowner is 26 
entitled to a development right.  27 

 28 
(b) Application. Application for vested rights approval shall be submitted to the clerk of 29 

the Planning Board no later than 12 months following any act or omission on the part 30 
of the county that the landowner discovers and asserts as the basis for a vested 31 
right, or no later than 12 months following written county notification to the 32 
landowner of the need to apply for a determination, whichever occurs sooner.  33 

 34 
(c) Public Participation. Prior to any hearing to consider a vested right, the clerk of the 35 

Planning Board shall provide adequate provide adequate public notice.  36 
 37 

1. Publication.  At least ten days prior to the hearing, notice shall be 38 
published in a newspaper of general circulation in Escambia County. 39 

2. Site sign.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, a sign no smaller than 40 
20 inches by 30 inches shall be prominently posted on, or as near as 41 
practicable to, the subject property and shall be clearly readable from 42 
the nearest public right-of-way.  43 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 10 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

3. Notification.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, notification shall be 1 
sent via U.S. mail to the address registered with the property appraiser 2 
for each owner of real property with any portion of the property located 3 
within 2500 feet of the subject property. The cost of the mailing is to be 4 
borne by the applicant.  5 

 6 
(d) Compliance review. The Planning Board shall conduct a quasi-judicial public 7 

hearing to consider the requested vested right according to the provisions of this 8 
article. The Planning Board shall adopt a recommendation to the BCC for vested 9 
right approval, approval with conditions, or denial based on the hearing record of 10 
evidence. 11 

  12 
(e) Criteria for vested rights determination. An owner shall be entitled to a 13 

determination of vested rights only if through substantial competent evidence it can 14 
be established that the proposed use of the property meets the concurrency 15 
provisions of Article 5 and in addition one of the following criteria has been met:  16 

 17 
(1) The proposed use was authorized pursuant to a county development order, or 18 

equivalent, issued on or before the effective date of this Code, or a pertinent 19 
amendment thereto, and the development has commenced and is continuing in 20 
good faith. In a claim based upon this criterion, the owner must produce evidence 21 
of actions and accomplishments that substantiate timely and lawful progression 22 
towards the completion of the intentions and plans documented in the original 23 
order, or equivalent. In a claim based upon this criterion, the right to which the 24 
owner may be vested is a continuation of the original order, or equivalent.  25 

 26 
(2) The owner is determined to have acquired rights due to good faith reliance on an 27 

act of commission or omission of the county which has caused the owner to 28 
make such a substantial change in position or to incur such extensive obligations 29 
and expenses that it would be highly inequitable and unjust to destroy the rights 30 
acquired. In a claim based upon this criterion, the owner must document, and the 31 
county must verify, the obligations and expenses that are in jeopardy. The owner 32 
must produce evidence of actions and accomplishments that substantiate timely 33 
and lawful progression towards the completion of the intentions and plans that 34 
have been jeopardized. Evidence including, but not limited to, that which 35 
demonstrates that such activity has not progressed in such a manner may be 36 
sufficient to negate a finding of good faith on the part of the owner and therefore 37 
invalidate the claim to vested rights.  38 

 39 
(f) Limitation on vested rights. A determination of vested rights shall expire and be 40 

null and void unless construction of improvements, if any, are commenced pursuant 41 
to a development order within 18 months after the issuance of the determination of 42 
vested rights.  43 

 44 
 45 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 11 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

Sec. 2-6.8 Planned Unit Developments.  1 
(a) General. Planned unit development (PUD) is an optional and supplemental 2 

compliance review process for the subdivision of land. It allows flexibility in LDC 3 
requirements to encourage greater creativity in land use planning and design for the 4 
mutual benefit of developers and the public. The intent of the PUD is to obtain 5 
benefits not anticipated by the strict application of zoning district regulations and 6 
subdivision standards, and not available by other variance processes. For the 7 
private gain of greater design flexibility, developers are required to provide greater 8 
public benefits through permanently preserved common open space, infrastructure 9 
improvements, accommodation of environmental and aesthetic features, and other 10 
permanent site improvements and amenities benefiting public health, safety and 11 
welfare. Proposed PUD is evaluated first through a quasi-judicial public hearing by 12 
the Planning Board and then by the Board of County Commissioners (BCC)  13 

 14 
(b) Limits on PUD. Planned unit development can be used to mix land uses, provide 15 

broader housing choices, and allow more compact development through specific 16 
height, area, yard, size and use requirements that are different in any or all respects 17 
from those required by the applicable zoning district, or subdivision design standards 18 
different from those prescribed in Chapter 5. Planned unit development is allowed 19 
for subdivision within any zoning district or future land use category, but it is subject 20 
to the following limitations:  21 

 22 
(1) Land uses. Land uses may vary from the specific uses allowed by the applicable 23 

zoning district, but they shall comply with the range of allowed uses within the 24 
applicable future land use category.  25 

(2) Density. The number of dwelling units shall not exceed the density allowed by 26 
the applicable future land use category or zoning district.  27 

(3) Other processes. The PUD process supplements but does not replace other 28 
applicable compliance review processes of the LDC, including those for approval 29 
of preliminary plats, construction plans, and final plats.  30 

(4) Standards. The PUD process shall not modify any level of service standards for 31 
adequate public facilities or standards for accessibility, life safety, or health  32 

 33 
(c) Application. An application for PUD approval shall be submitted to the clerk of the 34 

Planning Board within the time frame provided in the application. A pre-application 35 
meeting with staff is recommended.  36 

 37 
(d) Public participation. Prior to any hearing to consider a PUD, the clerk of the 38 

Planning Board shall provide adequate public notice.  39 
 40 

(1) Publication.  At least ten days prior to the hearing, notice shall be published in a 41 
newspaper of general circulation in Escambia County. 42 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 12 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

(2) Site sign.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, a sign no smaller than 20 inches 1 
by 30 inches shall be prominently posted on, or as near as practicable to, the 2 
subject property and shall be clearly readable from the nearest public right-of-way.  3 

(3) Notification.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, notification shall be sent via 4 
U.S. mail to the address registered with the property appraiser for each owner of 5 
real property with any portion of the property located within 2500 feet of the 6 
subject property. The cost of the mailing is to be borne by the applicant.  7 

 8 
(e) Compliance review. The Planning Board shall conduct a quasi-judicial public 9 

hearing as noticed to consider whether conditions warrant the proposed 10 
modifications and make recommendations regarding the proposal to the BCC and 11 
for them to consider and act on those recommendations.  12 

 13 
(f) Criteria for PUD approval. The applicant has the burden of presenting competent 14 

substantial evidence to the board that establishes each of the following conditions 15 
for the PUD:  16 

 17 
(1) Creative Planning. Uses and structures are arranged in a manner that 18 

demonstrates creative concepts of land use planning throughout the 19 
development area. Residential uses include a complementary and sustainable 20 
mix of dwelling unit types or mix with non-residential uses.  21 

(2) Natural amenities. Clustering, setbacks, easements and other methods are 22 
utilized to preserve to the greatest extent practicable the natural amenities and 23 
characteristics of the land, including open space, topography, natural vegetation, 24 
groundwater recharge, waterways, and scenic views. Deficiencies in natural 25 
amenities are supplemented through landscaping and other enhancements.  26 

(3) Desirable environment. A more desirable environment in which to live or work 27 
is created than would be possible through the strict application of the minimum 28 
requirements of the LDC. Common open space area is within reasonable walking 29 
distance of all dwelling units in the development.  30 

(4) Mobility. Internal circulation systems promote both pedestrian and vehicular 31 
mobility, especially between residential areas and local public open space, 32 
schools, retail sales and services, and employment. Sidewalks are located on at 33 
least one side of every street to support safe pedestrian mobility within the 34 
development and appropriate access to surrounding uses.  35 

(5) Efficient land use. An efficient use of land results in smaller networks of streets 36 
and utilities. If street rights-of-way are proposed to be less than standard width, 37 
easements will provide adequate space to install and maintain utilities.  38 

(6) Compatibility. The development is compatible with surrounding areas and 39 
provides stable conditions and character to maintain long-term compatibility. 40 

 41 
 42 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 13 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

Sec. 2-6.9 - Statutory development agreements.  1 

At the request of an applicant or the county, a voluntary development agreement 2 
may be entered into that would vest certain conditions agreed to by both parties 3 
according to the requirements of Florida Statutes. The form of the development 4 
agreement shall be approved through the county attorney's office. The planning board 5 
shall conduct the first of two public hearings required by law. The BCC shall conduct the 6 
second public hearing, with final adoption of the development agreement requiring a 7 
majority vote of the BCC.  8 

 9 
Section 2-6.10 Appeal of Administrative Decisions  10 
 11 
(a) Appeal option. Any person whose substantial interests have been adversely 12 

affected by an error in the order, requirement, interpretation, or determination of an 13 
administrative official regarding compliance with the requirements of the LDC may 14 
appeal that decision according to the provisions of this section. The provisions do 15 
not apply to decisions regarding administration of the building code, actions of code 16 
enforcement officers, or challenges of consistency of LDC regulations with the 17 
Comprehensive Plan. A claim to appeal or challenge the consistency of a 18 
development order with the adopted Comprehensive Plan must be filed with the 19 
Clerk of the Circuit Court of Escambia County pursuant to Florida Statute 163.3215.  20 

 21 
(b) Appeal process. Conditions that may justify modification of administrative decisions 22 
are evaluated through quasi-judicial public hearing review by the Board of Adjustment 23 
(BOA).  24 
 25 
(1) Application. Application for appeal of an administrative decision shall be submitted 26 

for compliance review within 15 days after the date of the decision being appealed. 27 
A quasi-judicial public hearing for the appeal shall be scheduled to occur within 30 28 
business days after receipt of a complete application. The application shall provide 29 
information as required by the adopted appeal procedures, including the following:  30 
 31 
a. Decision appealed. A copy of the written administrative decision to be reviewed 32 

on appeal.  33 
b. LDC reference. Identification of the specific LDC provisions for which 34 

noncompliance is alleged.  35 
c. Alleged error. A description of how the decision of the administrative official is 36 

considered arbitrary or capricious.  37 
d. Conditions. Documentation satisfying the conditions established in the 38 

compliance review provisions of this section.  39 
e. Remedy. A description of the proposed remedy.  40 
f. Other information. Any other pertinent information the applicant wishes to have 41 

considered.  42 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 14 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

 1 
(2) Public participation. Hearings to consider an appeal of administrative decision 2 

shall be open to the public. Prior to any hearing to consider an appeal of 3 
administrative decision, the county shall provide reasonable notice to the public as 4 
required by Florida Statutes.  Although the hearing before the BOA is open to the 5 
public, only those person or entities with “standing” will be allowed to present 6 
testimony or other evidence during the hearing. Persons with standing include:  7 
 8 
a. The applicant or other person who received the complained of adversed decision 9 

from the county administrative official.  10 
b. Those persons who are third parties to the administrative decision and who suffer 11 

an adverse impact that differs in kind (as opposed to degree) to any adverse 12 
impact suffered by the community as a whole.  13 

a. Publication.  At least ten days prior to the hearing, notice shall be 14 
published in a newspaper of general circulation in Escambia County. 15 

b. Site sign.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, a sign no smaller than 16 
20 inches by 30 inches shall be prominently posted on, or as near as 17 
practicable to, the subject property and shall be clearly readable from 18 
the nearest public right-of-way.  19 

c. Notification.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, notification shall be 20 
sent via U.S. mail to the address registered with the property appraiser 21 
for each owner of real property with any portion of the property located 22 
within 2500 feet of the subject property. The cost of the mailing is to be 23 
borne by the applicant. 24 

 25 

(3) Standing. Although the hearing before the BOA is open to the public, only those 26 
person or entities with “standing” will be allowed to present testimony or other 27 
evidence during the hearing. Persons with standing include:  28 
a. The applicant or any other person who received the adverse decision from the 29 

county administrative official.  30 
b. Those persons who are third parties to the administrative decision and who 31 

suffer an adverse impact that differs in kind (as opposed to degree) to any 32 
adverse impact suffered by the community as a whole.  33 

 34 
(3) (4) Compliance review. The BOA shall conduct the quasi-judicial public hearing 35 

to consider the appeal of an administrative decision. The applicant has the 36 
burden of presenting competent substantial evidence to the board that 37 
establishes each of the following conditions with regard to the decision being 38 
appealed:  39 
a. Arbitrary or capricious. The decision of the administrative official was neither 40 

required nor supported by the Comprehensive Plan or the LDC and was 41 
therefore arbitrary or capricious.  42 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 15 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

 1 
b. LDC noncompliance. The specific LDC provisions identified in the appeal 2 

application are appropriate to the decision and the decision was not in 3 
compliance with those provisions.  4 

c. Adverse impact. The applicant’s property will suffer an adverse impact as a 5 
result of the decision if it is not modified.  6 

d. Protected interest. The adverse impact is to a specific interest protected or 7 
furthered by the LDC or Comprehensive Plan.  8 

e. Greater impact. The adverse impact adversely affects the applicant in a 9 
greater degree than any adverse impact shared by the community at large; 10 
and, if the applicant is a third party to the decision, the adverse impact 11 
peculiar to the applicant differs in kind (as opposed to degree) to any suffered 12 
by the community as a whole.  13 

 14 
(4) (5) Final determination.  15 
 16 

a. Board finding. If the BOA finds from the record of the hearing that the 17 
applicant has presented competent substantial evidence proving the required 18 
conditions set out in the compliance review provisions of this section, the 19 
board shall find the appealed decision in error. The finding shall state with 20 
particularity how the decision of the administrative official was arbitrary or 21 
capricious. If the conditions are not proven the board shall affirm the decision. 22 

 23 
 b. Board authority. The BOA shall have the same authority and responsibility to 24 

change a decision found to be in error as is given by the LDC to the official 25 
who made the decision, but no more. The board may act only to the extent 26 
supported by the established record of evidence and only as necessary to 27 
maintain compliance with the LDC and the Comprehensive Plan. The board 28 
cannot offer opinions or interpretations generally. The authority of the board 29 
to act as the official does not include any authority to diminish or otherwise 30 
change the application of any technical design standard or specification 31 
established or referenced in the LDC, to change any concurrency 32 
management provisions, or to exempt any development from required 33 
compliance review and approval. 34 

 35 

Section 2. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 36 
Code of Escambia County, Chapter 2, Article 7, Sections 2-7.1 through Section 2-7.3 37 
are hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words stricken are 38 
deletions): 39 

 40 

Article 7 LDC and Comprehensive Plan Amendment 41 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 16 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

Sec. 2-7.1 Purpose of article. 1 

This article establishes the review necessary to consider and authorize both map and 2 
text amendments to the Land Development Code (LDC) and Comprehensive Plan.  3 
These LDC and Comprehensive Plan amendment reviews are defined by the general 4 
provisions of Article 1 and the specific provisions of this article.  The reviews are 5 
predominantly discretionary and provide opportunities to modify county land 6 
development goals, objectives, policies, and regulations within the limits prescribed by 7 
Florida Statutes.  More specifically, this article includes review for amendment of the 8 
LDC zoning map (rezoning), the Comprehensive Plan future land use map (FLUM), and 9 
text amendments to the provisions of both the LDC and Comprehensive Plan. 10 

 11 

Sec. 2-7.2 LDC zoning map and text amendments. 12 

(a) General.  All provisions of the LDC are established, modified, or repealed by 13 
ordinance of the Board of County Commissioners (BCC).  Zoning map and text 14 
amendments may be proposed by the county or others according to the ordinance 15 
enactment procedures prescribed by Florida Statutes and the provisions of this 16 
section.  Since any LDC amendment is a change to implementing the land use 17 
regulations of the county and can modify the requirements for subsequent 18 
authorizations of land uses and development activities, significant opportunities for 19 
public participation are provided.  These map and text amendment processes are 20 
established for the county to authorize appropriate changes to its land development 21 
regulations. 22 

(b) Zoning map amendment (Rezoning application) 23 

(1) Application.  An application for a rezoning shall be submitted to the clerk of the 24 
Planning Board at least 30 business days prior to the scheduled board meeting.  25 
If the application concerns property under the jurisdiction of the Santa Rosa 26 
Island Authority (SRIA), the application shall be submitted to the clerk of the 27 
SRIA at least 30 business days prior to the scheduled board meeting.  A pre-28 
application meeting of the applicant with the staff for the board is recommended 29 
to discuss the process and review county and applicant responsibilities. 30 

(2) Public participation.  Hearings to consider a rezoning application shall be open 31 
to the public. Prior to any such hearing, the clerk of the reviewing board shall 32 
provide reasonable notice to the public as required by Florida Statutes and the 33 
Comprehensive Plan.  Public notification is required as further outlined in this 34 
Article. The cost of the notification is to be borne by the applicant requesting 35 
review.  36 

a. Publication.  At least ten days prior to the hearing, notice shall be published 37 
in a newspaper of general circulation in Escambia County. 38 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 17 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

b. Site sign.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, a sign no smaller than 20 1 
inches by 30 inches shall be prominently posted on, or as near as practicable 2 
to, the subject property and shall be clearly readable from the nearest public 3 
right-of-way.  4 

c. Notification.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, notification shall be sent 5 
via U.S. mail to the address registered with the property appraiser for each 6 
owner of real property with any portion of the property located within 2500 7 
feet of the subject property. The cost of the mailing is to be borne by the 8 
applicant.  9 

(3) Compliance review. A quasi-judicial public hearing shall be conducted by the 10 
appropriate reviewing board to consider a requested rezoning according to the 11 
provisions of this article.  At the conclusion of the hearing, based on the record 12 
evidence, the reviewing board shall submit a recommendation to the BCC for 13 
rezoning approval, denial, or if appropriate and acceptable to the applicant, 14 
approval of a district with less intensive uses than the requested zoning.  15 

(4) Approval conditions.  The applicant has the burden of presenting competent 16 
substantial evidence to the reviewing board that establishes each of the following 17 
conditions: 18 

a. Consistent with Comprehensive Plan.  The proposed rezoning is 19 
consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan 20 
and not in conflict with any of its provisions. 21 

b. Consistent with LDC.  The proposed rezoning is consistent with the stated 22 
purposes and intent of the LDC and not in conflict with any of its provisions.   23 

c. Compatibility.  All land uses, development activities, and conditions allowed 24 
by the proposed zoning are compatible with the surrounding conforming uses, 25 
activities and conditions and are able to coexist in relative proximity to them in 26 
a stable fashion over time such that no use, activity, or condition negatively 27 
impacts another.  The appropriateness of the rezoning is not limited to any 28 
specific use that may be proposed but is evident for all permitted uses of the 29 
requested zoning.  This condition shall not apply to any conditional uses of 30 
the proposed district or compatibility with nonconforming or unapproved uses, 31 
activities, or conditions. 32 

d. Changed conditions.  The area to which the proposed rezoning would apply 33 
has changed, or is changing, to such a degree that it is in the public interest 34 
to encourage new uses, density, or intensity in the area through rezoning. 35 

e. Development patterns.  The proposed rezoning would contribute to or result 36 
in a logical and orderly development pattern. 37 

f. Effect on natural environment. The proposed rezoning would not increase 38 
the probability of any significant adverse impacts on the natural environment.  39 

(5) Board Action.  When the reviewing board finds from the record of the hearing 40 
that the applicant has presented competent substantial evidence establishing the 41 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 18 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

required conditions, the board shall recommend approval of the rezoning request 1 
to the BCC, unless the board determines that maintaining the current zoning will 2 
prevent the following: 3 

a. Premature development or sprawl.  The land uses and development 4 
activities allowed by the proposed rezoning are premature, or the rezoning 5 
would likely create or contribute to an urban sprawl pattern of development 6 
more than the current zoning.  7 

b. Isolated districts.  The proposed rezoning would create or contribute to an 8 
isolated zoning district that is neither related to the adjacent and nearby 9 
zoning districts nor an appropriate transition between them. 10 

c. Intrusion of non-residential uses.  The proposed rezoning would allow an 11 
intrusion of commercial or industrial uses into a platted residential subdivision 12 
or other established residential area more than the current zoning.  13 

d. Property value impacts.  The land uses, development activities and 14 
conditions allowed by the proposed rezoning would likely result in significant 15 
adverse impacts upon the property values of adjacent properties or those in 16 
the immediate area more than the types of use, activities, and conditions 17 
permitted by the current zoning.  18 

e. Nuisance-based impacts.  The land uses, development activities and 19 
conditions allowed by the proposed rezoning would likely adversely impact 20 
the character of existing development or quality of life in the general area or 21 
neighborhood by creating excessive traffic, noise, lights, vibration, fumes, 22 
odors, dust, physical activities, or other detrimental effects or nuisances more 23 
than the types of uses, activities and conditions permitted by the current 24 
zoning. 25 
 26 

(6) Final determination.  The BCC at its scheduled hearing shall adopt, modify, or 27 
reject the recommendation of the Planning Board or SRIA or return the rezoning 28 
case to the board with instructions for additional facts or clarification.  The staff of 29 
the recommending board shall inform the board of all formal actions taken by the 30 
BCC on the rezoning request.  If the final determination of the BCC is denial of 31 
the rezoning, no new application for identical action on the same parcel shall be 32 
accepted for consideration within a period of 180 days from the date of the 33 
denial. 34 

(7) Appeals.  Actions by the BCC adopting, rejecting, or modifying the 35 
recommended rezoning of the reviewing board are final.  Any party seeking 36 
judicial review of the final determination shall do so according to the general 37 
provisions of Article 1.  Additionally, written notice of the filing of any such petition 38 
for judicial review shall be promptly provided by the petitioner through the county 39 
to each owner of real property with any portion within a 500-foot radius of the 40 
rezoning subject property. (Ord. No. 2015-35, § 1, 9-3-2015) 41 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 19 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

 1 

(c) LDC Text amendment provisions. 2 

Changes to the text of the LDC set policy and are legislative in nature.  The 3 
requirements to approve a text amendment are established for the Planning Board 4 
to make recommendations to the BCC regarding whether requested changes to LDC 5 
text are necessary and appropriate and for the BCC to consider and act on those 6 
recommendations.  The text amendment process does not amend the content of 7 
zoning district maps, technical standards, and other maps or documents adopted by 8 
reference within the LDC. 9 

(1) Application.  Where a text amendment is requested by petition to the Planning 10 
Board, application shall be submitted for compliance review to the clerk of the 11 
Planning Board at least 30 business days prior to the scheduled board meeting.  12 
A pre-application meeting of the petitioner with staff for the board is 13 
recommended to discuss the process and review county and petitioner 14 
responsibilities.   15 

(2) Public participation.  Prior to any meeting to consider a text amendment, the 16 
clerk of the Planning Board shall ensure public notice consistent with Florida 17 
Statutes and the Comprehensive Plan.   At least ten days prior to the hearing, 18 
notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in Escambia 19 
County. 20 

(3) Compliance review.  The Planning Board shall consider a requested text 21 
amendment during the noticed meeting of the board and determine any 22 
subsequent action.  If the text is to be evaluated as an amending ordinance, the 23 
board shall conduct a public hearing.  At the conclusion of the hearing the 24 
Planning Board shall adopt a recommendation to the BCC for adoption, adoption 25 
with modification, or rejection of the amendment.   26 

a. Planning Official’s evaluation.  For any amending ordinance, or as may be 27 
requested by the Planning Board for any other text amendment proposal, the 28 
Planning Official shall review and evaluate the proposal according to the 29 
required amendment conditions.  The evaluation shall be provided to the 30 
Planning Board for consideration with the proposed text amendment. 31 

b. Recommendation to BCC.  For any amending ordinance, the clerk of the 32 
Planning Board shall forward the board’s recommendation to the BCC for 33 
consideration in a public hearing at the next available scheduled meeting of 34 
the BCC.  The clerk of the Planning Board shall ensure public notice of the 35 
BCC hearing consistent with Florida Statutes and the notice required for 36 
hearings of the Planning Board. 37 

(4) Final determination.  The BCC shall consider the amending ordinance at a 38 
public hearing as noticed and adopt, modify, or reject the recommendation of the 39 
Planning Board.  At its discretion, the BCC may return the amending ordinance to 40 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 20 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

the board with instructions for modifications.  If the amending ordinance is 1 
returned for modifications, the Planning Board shall hold another public hearing 2 
for the purpose of considering any revisions.  The hearing shall be at a 3 
scheduled meeting of the Planning Board, with public notice the same as that 4 
provided for the initial hearing.  Within the time requested by the BCC, the 5 
Planning Board shall resubmit the amending ordinance with any revisions it may 6 
propose for BCC consideration.  The clerk of the Planning Board shall again 7 
ensure proper public notice of the hearing at the next available scheduled 8 
meeting of the BCC.  In the hearing, the BCC shall again consider the amending 9 
ordinance for adoption, modification, or rejection. 10 

(d) Consistency with Comprehensive Plan.  A challenge by a substantially affected 11 
person of any LDC regulation on the basis that it is inconsistent with the 12 
Comprehensive Plan shall be made according to the administrative review 13 
provisions of Florida Statutes.  14 

Sec. 2-7.3 Comprehensive Plan future land use and text amendments. 15 

(a) General.  All provisions of the Comprehensive Plan are established, modified, or 16 
repealed by ordinance of the Board of County Commissioners (BCC).  Future land 17 
use map (FLUM) and text amendments may be proposed by the county or others 18 
according to ordinance enactment and plan amendment procedures prescribed by 19 
Florida Statutes and the provisions of this section.  Since any Comprehensive Plan 20 
amendment is a change in the foundational growth management plan guiding county 21 
economic growth, land development, resource protection, and the provision of public 22 
services and facilities, significant opportunities for public participation are provided. 23 

(b) Applicant expenses and responsibilities. Any person requesting consideration of 24 
an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan shall be responsible for all costs and 25 
supporting information associated with preparation of the request that may be 26 
required by the county or the state. 27 

(c) State review.  A Comprehensive Plan amendment adopted by the BCC shall follow 28 
the applicable state statute.  An amendment qualifies as a small scale if it is less 29 
than ten acres in size or a large scale if it is greater than ten acres in size.   30 

(d) Amendment requirements.  Amendments to both the text and the future land use 31 
map of the Comprehensive Plan functionally set policy and are legislative in nature.  32 
The requirements to approve a comprehensive plan amendment are established for 33 
the Planning Board to make final recommendations to the BCC regarding whether 34 
requested amendments to the Comprehensive Plan of the county are necessary and 35 
appropriate and for the BCC to consider and act on those recommendations. 36 

(e) Comprehensive Plan map amendments 37 

(1) Application.  An application for a Comprehensive Plan map amendment 38 
approval shall be submitted for compliance review to the clerk of the Planning 39 
Board at least 30 business days prior to the scheduled board meeting.  A pre-40 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 21 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

application meeting of the applicant with staff for the board is recommended to 1 
discuss the process and review county and applicant responsibilities.   2 

(2) Public participation. Prior to any hearing to consider a comprehensive plan 3 
map amendment, the clerk of the Planning Board shall ensure public notice 4 
consistent with Florida Statutes and the Comprehensive Plan. 5 

a. Publication.  At least ten days prior to the hearing, notice shall be published 6 
in a newspaper of general circulation in Escambia County. 7 

b. Site sign.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, a sign no smaller than 20 8 
inches by 30 inches shall be prominently posted on, or as near as practicable 9 
to, the subject property and shall be clearly readable from the nearest public 10 
right-of-way.  11 

c. Notification.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, notification shall be sent 12 
via U.S. mail to the address registered with the property appraiser for each 13 
owner of real property with any portion of the property located within 2500 14 
feet of the subject property. The cost of the mailing is to be borne by the 15 
applicant.  16 

(3) Compliance review.  The Planning Board shall consider a requested 17 
Comprehensive Plan map amendment during the noticed meeting of the board 18 
and determine any subsequent actions.  At the conclusion of the hearing, the 19 
Planning Board shall adopt a recommendation to the BCC for adoption, adoption 20 
with modification, or rejection of the amendment.   21 

a. General amendment conditions.  All amendments to the Comprehensive 22 
Plan shall demonstrate the following general conditions, allowing that where 23 
an amendment is imposed by a state or federal requirement it need only 24 
demonstrate the conditions to the greatest extent practicable under that 25 
requirement: 26 

1. Need and benefit.  There is an identified land use need particular to the 27 
scope and function of the Comprehensive Plan for which an amendment is 28 
clearly warranted. 29 

2. Professional practices.  The proposed amendment applies 30 
contemporary planning principles, engineering standards, and other 31 
professional practices to provide an effective and efficient remedy for the 32 
identified land use problem or need. 33 

b. FLUM amendment conditions.  In addition to the general amendment 34 
conditions, a future land use map amendment shall be based upon analyses 35 
by Florida Statute.   36 

c. (f) Comprehensive Plan text amendment  37 

A comprehensive plan text amendment shall demonstrate any applicable 38 
governing regulations. 39 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 22 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

Changes to the text of the comprehensive plan set policy and are legislative in 1 
nature.  The requirements to approve a text amendment are established for the 2 
Planning Board to make recommendations to the BCC regarding whether 3 
requested changes to comprehensive plan text are necessary and appropriate 4 
and for the BCC to consider and act on those recommendations.  The text 5 
amendment process does not amend the content of future land use maps, 6 
technical standards, and other maps or documents adopted by reference within 7 
the comprehensive plan.  8 

(1) Application.  Where a text amendment is requested by petition to the Planning 9 
Board, application shall be submitted for compliance review to the clerk of the 10 
Planning Board at least 30 business days prior to the scheduled board meeting.  11 
A pre-application meeting of the petitioner with staff for the board is 12 
recommended to discuss the process and review county and petitioner 13 
responsibilities.   14 

(2) Public participation.  Prior to any meeting to consider a text amendment, the 15 
clerk of the Planning Board shall ensure public notice consistent with Florida 16 
Statutes and the Comprehensive Plan.   At least ten days prior to the hearing, 17 
notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in Escambia 18 
County. 19 

(3) Compliance review.  The Planning Board shall consider a requested text 20 
amendment during the noticed meeting of the board and determine any 21 
subsequent action.  If the text is to be evaluated as an amending ordinance, the 22 
board shall conduct a public hearing.  At the conclusion of the hearing the 23 
Planning Board shall adopt a recommendation to the BCC for adoption, adoption 24 
with modification, or rejection of the amendment.   25 

a. Planning Official’s report.  For any amending ordinance, or as may be 26 
requested by the Planning Board for any other amendment proposal, the 27 
Planning Official shall review and evaluate the proposal according to the 28 
required amendment conditions.  The evaluation shall be provided to the 29 
Planning Board for consideration with the proposed text amendment. 30 

b. Recommendation to BCC.  For any amending ordinance, the clerk of the 31 
Planning Board shall forward the board’s recommendation to the BCC for 32 
consideration in a public hearing at the next available scheduled meeting of 33 
the BCC.  The clerk of the Planning Board shall ensure public notice of all 34 
BCC hearings regarding the amendment consistent with Florida Statutes and 35 
the notice required for hearings of the Planning Board. 36 

(4) Final determination.  Requirements for a final determination on a proposed 37 
Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be as prescribed by Florida Statutes and  38 
summarized in the following actions: 39 

a. Initial action of BCC.  The BCC shall consider the amending ordinance at its 40 
noticed public hearing and accept, modify, or reject the recommendation of 41 
the Planning Board.  The initial hearing of the BCC shall be for transmittal if 42 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 23 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

the amendment is following the expedited state review or state coordinated 1 
review process.  If the amendment qualifies as small in scale, the initial 2 
hearing shall be the adoption hearing for the ordinance. 3 

b. Initial transmittal.  If approved by the BCC at the initial public hearing, an 4 
amendment following the expedited state review or state coordinated review 5 
process shall be transmitted with appropriate supporting data and analysis to 6 
the state land planning agency and other reviewing agencies for comment. 7 

c. Response of BCC.  After county receipt of reviewing agency comments the 8 
BCC shall hold a second noticed public hearing within the time prescribed by 9 
statute to consider adoption of the ordinance.  At the hearing the BCC shall 10 
adopt, modify, or reject the amending ordinance.  Failure to timely hold a 11 
second hearing shall be considered withdrawal of the amendment. 12 

d. Adoption transmittal.  If approved by the BCC at a public hearing, the 13 
county shall transmit the adopted amendment and appropriate supporting 14 
data and analysis to the state land planning agency and any other reviewing 15 
agencies that provided timely comment.  An adopted amendment becomes 16 
effective no sooner than the minimum time after adoption prescribed by 17 
statute.   If timely challenge, an amendment does not become effective until 18 
the state issues a final order determining compliance. 19 

e. Landowner dispute resolution.  If the county denies a landowner’s request 20 
for an amendment to the comprehensive plan that is applicable to the owner’s 21 
land, the county must afford the owner an opportunity for informal mediation 22 
or other alternative dispute resolution as required by Florida Statutes. 23 

Section 3.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 24 
Code of Escambia County, Chapter 4, Article 7, Sections 4-7.16 is hereby amended as 25 
follows (words underlined are additions and words stricken are deletions): 26 

Sec. 4-7.6 Borrow pits and reclamation. 27 

(a)  Approvals.  The extraction, removal and transportation of material excavated 28 
from borrow pits, and the filling or other reclamation of such pits after removal of 29 
usable materials, requires site development approval coordinated with the borrow 30 
pit and reclamation provisions of Chapters 42 and 82, Escambia County Code of 31 
Ordinances.  Borrow pits and their reclamation remain subject to the additional 32 
requirements of applicable federal, state, and regional regulatory authorities. 33 

(1) Application. An application to consider any borrow pit or reclamation activity 34 
shall be submitted to the clerk of the Board at least 30 business days prior to 35 
the scheduled board meeting.  A pre-application meeting of the petitioner with 36 
county staff  is recommended to discuss the process and review county and 37 
petitioner responsibilities.   38 

(2) Public participation. Prior to any hearing to consider any borrow pit or 39 
reclamation activity, the clerk of the Board shall ensure public notice 40 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 24 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

consistent with Florida Statutes, Code of Ordinance and the Comprehensive 1 
Plan. 2 
a. Publication.  At least ten days prior to the hearing, notice shall be 3 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in Escambia County. 4 

b. Site sign.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, a sign no smaller than 20 5 
inches by 30 inches shall be prominently posted on, or as near as 6 
practicable to, the subject property and shall be clearly readable from the 7 
nearest public right-of-way.  8 

c. Notification.  At least 15 days prior to the hearing, notification shall be 9 
sent via U.S. mail to the address registered with the property appraiser for 10 
each owner of real property with any portion of the property located within 11 
2500 feet of the subject property. The cost of the mailing is to be borne by 12 
the applicant. 13 

 14 

(a)(b)Standards regulating conditional uses. In addition to the general provisions 15 
regulating conditional uses, a conditional use may be permitted by the BOA provided 16 
the proposed conditional use complies with the standards of this Code and the 17 
following requirements: 18 

(1) Borrow pits and land clearing debris disposal sites. 19 

a. Sites shall require access from adequately wide paved roads where trucks 20 
hauling excavated materials or debris to/from the site do not require access 21 
on local residential roads.  22 

b. The scale, intensity and operation of use shall not generate unreasonable 23 
noise, traffic, odors, dust, or other potential nuisances or hazards to 24 
contiguous residential properties. 25 

c. The applicant shall submit a boundary survey and description of anticipated 26 
excavation phases for a borrow pit as well as a reclamation plan for affected 27 
lands. The same requirements shall apply to a development plan explaining: 28 

1. Proposed practices to protect adjacent land and water resources, 29 
minimize erosion, and    treat stormwater runoff.  30 

2. Safety features of the development plan. 31 

3. Landscaped areas, particularly treatment of property lines in the 32 
proximity of residential uses.  33 

4. The applicant's reclamation plan. 34 

5. Time schedule that meets the requirements of the permitting agency. 35 

6. Method, manner, and type of revegetation of affected areas. 36 
d. Minimum parcel size is 20 acres. 37 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 25 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

e. Conditional use approval pursuant to this subsection does not waive an 1 
applicant’s duty to meet any other county, state, or federal permitting 2 
requirements or performance standards. 3 

f. Notwithstanding the uses listed for any zoning district, the conditional use 4 
approval process shall be waived for any borrow pit or reclamation activity 5 
that is located 1000 feet on all sides from any residential use or zoning district 6 
and is serviced by an adjacent arterial or collector road. 7 
 8 

(b)(c)Standards regulating adverse off-site impacts 9 
(1) Noise 10 

a. Prohibitions. It shall be unlawful, except as expressly permitted herein, to 11 
make, cause, or allow the making of any noise or sound which exceeds the 12 
limits set forth in this article or in any county ordinance regulating noise. The 13 
Escambia County Code of Ordinances contains the principal noise 14 
regulations; the following provisions deal with development issues only.  15 

b. Measurement of sound. The measurement of sound or noise shall be made 16 
with a calibrated sound or noise level meter. A calibration check shall be 17 
made at the time of any noise measurement. Measurements recorded shall 18 
be taken so as to provide a proper representation of the noise source. A 19 
windscreen for the sound level meter microphone shall be used when 20 
required. Traffic, aircraft and other transportation noise sources and other 21 
background noises shall not be considered in taking measurements except 22 
where such background noise interferes with the primary noise being 23 
measured. All measurements shall be made at the property line of the 24 
subject property and such measurements shall be taken at least five feet 25 
above grade and for a period of not less than two minutes. 26 

c. Maximum permissible sound levels. No manufacturing or commercial use 27 
shall operate or cause to be operated any source of sound in such a 28 
manner as to create a sound level which exceeds the limits set forth below 29 
at the time of land use certificate/site plan review, the applicant may be 30 
asked to certify the intent to meet the specified standard:  31 

 32 

 33 

Sound level limits 34 

Use Occupancy Time Sound Level Limit dB 

Commercial/ 
tourist 

7:00 a.m.—10:00 p.m. 
10:00 p.m.— 7:00 a.m. 

75 
70 

Manufacturing 
ID-P 

At all times 60 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 26 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

ID-1 or ID-2  6:00 a.m.—10:00 p.m. 
10:00 p.m.— 6:00 a.m. 

95 
85 

(2) Hours of operation 1 

a. Mining, borrow pit, resource extraction, and reclamation activities, including land 2 
clearing debris and construction and demolition debris disposal that require trucks 3 
and heavy equipment to traverse through residential areas as their only access path 4 
to pit operations are limited to the hours between 6:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Monday 5 
through Friday and between 8:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m. on Saturday. Operations that 6 
occur entirely on-site and do not require traffic or access to roadways are permitted 7 
on Sunday during daylight hours.  8 
b. Mining, borrow pit, resource extraction, and reclamation activities, including land 9 
clearing debris and construction and demolition debris disposal that access their 10 
operations without traversing through residential areas are limited to the hours 11 
between 6:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Monday through Saturday. Operations that occur 12 
entirely on-site and do not require traffic or access to roadways are permitted on 13 
Sunday during daylight hours. 14 

(3) Exceptions to the above noted operating hours may be authorized by federal, state, 15 
and/or county authorities in cases of emergency or when determined by such authorities 16 
to best serve the public interest. Any exceptions require written approval by the county 17 
administrator, or his/her appointed designee, specifying the reason and allowed 18 
timeframe(s) for the exception. 19 
(a) Exemptions. The following uses or activities are exempt from the noise level 20 

regulations as noted above and in chapter 1-20.3: 21 
(1) Construction operations for which building permits have been issued, provided that 22 

such operations are limited to the hours between 5:00 a.m. and one hour after 23 
sunset, except that on Pensacola Beach: 24 

a. No outside construction may begin before 6:30 a.m., if within 200 feet of an 25 
occupied residence; and  26 

b. Owner-occupied single-family detached houses are exempt from the above 27 
restriction. 28 

(2) Safety signals, warning devices, bells and chimes of churches; 29 
(3) Noise from emergency vehicles, or noises resulting from emergency works; 30 
(4) All noises coming from the normal operation of trains, aircraft (not including scale 31 

model aircraft), motor vehicles governed by F.S. § 316.293, or vessels operated 32 
upon the waters within or adjacent to Escambia County;  33 

(5) Activities at Five Flags Speedway and/or other legally constructed and operated 34 
tracks or courses for competitive motor vehicles. 35 

 36 

(c)(d) Borrow pits (includes mining and resource extraction) and reclamation 37 
activities thereof 38 

(1) Setbacks for excavation. Borrow pit slope commencement (i.e., the outermost edge 39 
of excavation) shall be located a minimum of 25 feet from the adjoining owner's 40 
property boundary and/or adjacent right-of-way (ROW); however, minimum 41 
excavation setbacks shall be consistent with the setbacks to be applied in the 42 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 27 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

applicant’s reclamation plan. Setback provisions established herein include the 1 
required width for landscape screening and buffers subsequently noted herein. The 2 
following exceptions may apply:  3 

a. Back to back pits. The setback for slope commencement excludes property 4 
boundary lines between active pits using the same excavation area.  5 
b. Site specific requirements. Increased setbacks may be required per the terms of 6 
the mandatory county development order to protect wellheads, environmental areas, 7 
and/or adjacent properties from adverse impacts. 8 
 9 

 10 

(2) Excavation slope requirements. The angle of repose for borrow pit/mining slopes 11 
shall be no greater than 2:1 (i.e., two feet horizontal for each one foot vertical) unless 12 
a professional engineer (P.E.) or professional geologist (P.G.) certifies that an angle 13 
of repose exceeding this ratio will prohibit any potential erosion or slumping, factoring 14 
into account the type of soil (i.e., clay, sand, etc.) and pertinent environmental 15 
conditions of the area.  16 

(3) Traffic requirements. See section 7.11.09. Pit access shall be limited to routes 17 
having the least impact on residential areas, and the use shall be subject to all traffic 18 
concurrency requirements.  19 

(4) Permits. See Escambia County Code of Ordinances, part I, chapter 42, Article VIII, 20 
section 42-323. A county resource extraction permit is required for extraction, 21 
removal and transportation of material excavated from the site. Permits for filling 22 
and/or reclamation of pits after removal of usable materials are subject to additional 23 
federal, state and/or local regulations as governed by the applicable regulatory 24 
authority. 25 

(5) Hours of operation. Limited for pits and reclamation activities as indicated  above. 26 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 28 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

(6) Fences and gates. A security fence with appropriate gates for access, not less than 1 
six feet above grade, is required along the outer perimeter of the excavated area, 2 
with exception of the pit access point(s). Additional security features, such as barbed 3 
wire above the fence top, are permitted. Gates for access shall be locked at all times 4 
during non-operating hours. Fences and gates shall be maintained in a reasonable 5 
condition to remain an effective barrier.   6 

(7) Screening. Portions of the pit visible from the public right-of-way or nearest 7 
residential use shall be screened with dense landscaping to achieve at least 75 8 
percent opacity . The landscape buffer shall be no less than ten feet in width at any 9 
given point and may be placed either inside or outside the required fence perimeter 10 
to achieve maximum dust and noise reduction and visible shielding. Earthen berms 11 
with a minimum height of three feet can be placed within this buffer area.  12 

(8) Buffers. In addition to the landscape screening noted above, a minimum ten-foot 13 
wide buffer is required parallel to, and inside, the required fence. Excavation, pit 14 
operations, parking, storage and disposal of debris are not permitted within the 15 
screening or buffer areas. The setback area may not be used for truck or equipment 16 
traffic, except as necessary to maintain the setback area and perimeter fence. Pit 17 
access point(s) shall be designed perpendicular to the buffer/screening width with 18 
the least disturbance to the buffer/screening zone that allows safe vehicle and 19 
equipment access to the operating site. 20 

(9) Signs. "No Trespassing" signs are required at each pit access point(s), every 250 21 
linear feet on the boundary fence, and at each corner, in letters not less than two 22 
inches in height. "No Trespassing" signs shall be maintained in legible condition. 23 

(10) Reclamation activities. Active reclamation activities shall be governed by any 24 
performance standards applicable to the reclamation occurring on site, in 25 
accordance with all federal, state, and local regulations and as approved pursuant to 26 
the Escambia County Code of Ordinances. Reclamation involving land clearing 27 
debris disposal shall only be permitted to the minimum height above ground level 28 
that allows for environmental safety and stormwater runoff consistent with the 29 
surrounding environment and intended post-mining land use not to exceed six feet. 30 
Groundwater monitoring wells may be required for specific types of debris disposal 31 
per the applicable federal and state regulations and the terms of the required county-32 
approved reclamation plan. 33 

(11) Existing permitted and unpermitted activities.  Borrow pits, and resource 34 
extraction activities existing and in operation prior to August 22, 2014, or permitted 35 
prior to that date shall be grandfathering (or vested) in accordance with the following 36 
regulations: 37 
(a) Lawful nonconforming activities existing prior to June 2, 2005.  Ordinance 2005-38 
18 was adopted on June 2, 2005.  Borrow pits and resource extraction activities 39 
existing and in operation prior to June 2, 2005 became lawful nonconforming land 40 
uses on June 2, 2005.  Such land use activities were and are subject to the 41 
provisions of Chapter 1, Article 2 of the Land Development Code.  Local permits are 42 
required and to the extent these facilities and land use activities are not 43 
grandfathered and do not already comply with applicable regulations, they shall have 44 
180 days from the date this ordinance is approved to comply.  Extensions for 45 
extenuating circumstances may be approved by the County Administrator or the 46 
County Administrator’s designee on a case-by-case basis. 47 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 29 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

(b) Unpermitted existing activities.  Borrow pit and resource extraction activities 1 
created on or after June 2, 2005 that were otherwise in a zoning district that 2 
authorized the land use activity as either a permitted or conditional use, and which 3 
made application for either permitting or a development order prior to August 22, 4 
2014, shall obtain and will be considered for a local permit to operate consistent with 5 
their current and historical use of the property.  The technical conditions of the permit 6 
shall be addressed on a case-by-case basis, which will include consideration of the 7 
nature and history of the activity to be permitted and the length of time the activity 8 
has been ongoing; however, the permit conditions will include compliance with this 9 
article to the extent feasible.  Facilities qualifying to request treatment pursuant to 10 
either section 5.a or 5.b may choose either. 11 
(c) Permitted existing activities.  The grandfathered status and vested rights of 12 
operators and owners of borrow pits and resource extraction activities that held a 13 
current and active development order or other permit issued by the County prior to 14 
August 22, 2014, are to obtain local permits upon approval of this section and are to 15 
be addressed on a case-by-case basis that will include consideration of the specific 16 
wording of the previously approved development order, permit and any other land 17 
use approval issued by the County relating to the operation of the borrow pit or 18 
resource extraction activity.  Previously permitted or approved performance 19 
standards remain in effect, except where the County determines the public health, 20 
safety and welfare dictates the current standard apply. 21 
(d) Inordinate burden.  In no event shall the application of any revision to the Land 22 
Development Code relating to an activity that falls within the coverage of subsection 23 
5 be so severe as to make the permitted activity either economically infeasible or to 24 
impose an inordinate burden on the land use activity, as such inordinate burden is 25 
defined in Section 70.001, Fla. Statute. 26 

 27 
Section 4. Severability. 28 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 29 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 30 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 31 
 32 
Section 5. Inclusion in Code.  33 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 34 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2016); and that the sections, 35 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 36 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “chapter,” or such other 37 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 38 

 39 
 40 
 41 

INTTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 42 
 43 
 44 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 30 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



 

 1 
 2 
 3 

Section 5. Effective Date.  4 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 5 
 6 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2017. 7 
 8 

 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 9 
 OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 10 

  11 
      By: _______________________________ 12 
           D. B. Underhill, Chairman 13 
 14 

 15 

ATTEST:    PAM CHILDERS                                             16 
    Clerk of the Circuit Court 17 

 18 
  By: __________________________    19 
    Deputy Clerk  20 
 21 
(SEAL) 22 

 23 

ENACTED: 24 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    25 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  26 

PB 2-07-2017 Page 31 
Re: Chapter 2 Public Notification. 
DRAFT PB4 
 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. C.           
Meeting Date: 02/07/2017  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending an LDC

Ordinance Chapter 2, Article 5, Final Plats
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 2, Article 5,
Final Plats
That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC) Chapter 2, Article 5
“Subdivision”, Section 2-5.7 “Final plats”; establishing a requirement for an infrastructure
maintenance disclosure.

BACKGROUND:
Section 125.01, Florida Statutes, authorizes the BCC to establish regulations for site and
building requirements and final plats in the unincorporated areas of the County pursuant
to general law. Maintenance of infrastructure can be extremely costly and is necessary
for the most basic enjoyment of residential property rights. Applicant shall provide a
disclosure form showing the entity responsible for maintenance of the infrastructure.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by
Meredith D. Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments
are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:



This Ordinance, amending the LDC, will be filed with the Department of State following
adoption by the board.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with  the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance
Backup material



le(;al review

(county department use only)

pv , .. Ordinance amending Chapter 2, requiring an infrastructure maintenance disclosure

12/27/16
Date:

Date requested back by: 1/12/17

Allyson Cain
Requested b\;

595-3547
I'lione Number:

(LEGAL USK ONLY)

Legal Review by

1
Date Received:

v
Approved sis to form and legal sufficiency.

Not approved.

Make subject to legal signoff.

Additional comments:



   
 

ORDINANCE 2017-__ 1 
 2 
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA; AMENDING 3 
VOLUME II OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 4 
THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, 5 
FLORIDA; AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 5 “SUBDIVISION”, 6 
SECTION 2-5.7 “FINAL PLATS”; ESTABLISHING A REQUIREMENT 7 
FOR AN INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCE DISCLOSURE; 8 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN 9 
THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 10 

 11 
 WHEREAS, section 125.01, Florida Statutes, authorizes the Board of County 12 
Commissioners to establish regulations for site and building requirements, final plats in 13 
the unincorporated areas of the County pursuant to general law; and, 14 

  15 
 WHEREAS, through the Land Development Code, the Escambia County Board 16 
of County Commissioners desires to preserve the county as a desirable community in 17 
which to live, vacation and do business; and,  18 
 19 
 WHEREAS, maintenance of infrastructure can be extremely costly and is 20 
necessary for the most basic enjoyment of residential property rights. 21 

 22 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 23 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 24 
 25 
SECTION 1. Chapter 2, Article 5, Section 2-5.7 of the Escambia County Land 26 
Development Code is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and 27 
words stricken are deletions): 28 

Article 5 Subdivision 29 

Sec.2-5.7 Final plats. 30 

(a) General. Final plat approval is required to map the proposed subdivision of land 31 
in compliance with the platting requirements of Florida Statutes, so that, upon its 32 
recording, all land shown on the plat that is a part of the subdivision is identified 33 
and may be conveyed by reference to the plat, including the dedication of rights-34 
of-way and easements.  The approval of a final plat allows the recording of the 35 
plat in the public records when its content and form are consistent with state and 36 
county requirements and with any applicable conditions of its approved 37 
preliminary plat and infrastructure construction plan. 38 

(b) Application for the final plat.  Applicants seeking final plat approval from the 39 
Board of County Commissioners shall submit their request to the Office of the 40 
Planning Official.  Applications shall be submitted within two years of the date 41 

PB: 2-7-17 
Re: Infrastructure Maintenance Disclosure 
Draft PB1 Page 1 
 



   
 

that the preliminary plat and construction plans were approved unless an 1 
extension is granted as provided in Chapter 2. 2 

(c) Warranty agreement.  Applicants seeking final plat approval shall warrant that 3 
all public subdivision improvements are built in accordance with approved 4 
construction plans and free from design, construction, material, and workmanship 5 
defects for a LDC 2:19 period of two years from the date that the final plat is 6 
recorded.  The applicant shall make the warranty on a form of warranty 7 
agreement published by the County. 8 

(d) Incidental deficiencies. At the discretion of the County Engineer, final plats may 9 
be submitted to the Board of County Commissioners for approval with minor 10 
defects to public subdivision improvements that are determined to be incidental 11 
deficiencies.  Incidental deficiencies are primarily cosmetic in nature and do not 12 
undermine the function or stability of the public subdivision improvements. 13 
Incidental deficiencies include but are not limited to the following:   14 
(1) Cracked curbing or other cracked concrete that is not destroyed or displaced 15 

but still functions for the intended use. 16 
(2) Minor ponding of water on asphalt, provided base failure is not evident. 17 
(3) Minor settling of asphalt areas, provided base failure is not evident. 18 
(4) Minor defects in stormwater pipe, provided installation is in accordance with 19 

the manufacturers’ requirements. 20 
(5) Ponds recharging at a slow rate, but still meeting regulatory requirements. 21 
(6) Seed or sod that has failed to establish sufficient ground cover for final 22 

stabilization and erosion control. 23 

Incomplete installation of street signs and pavement markings shall not be considered 24 
incidental deficiencies.  If incidental deficiencies exist when the final plat is submitted for 25 
approval by the Board of County Commissioners, the applicant shall also include 26 
financial security with the executed warranty agreement. 27 

(e) Acceptable forms of financial security.  Financial security shall be in the form of a 28 
cash deposit or irrevocable letter of credit.  The cash deposit shall be held in an 29 
interest-bearing account with withdrawals conditions upon approval of the County 30 
Administrator. Interest on cash deposits shall be retained by the applicant only if 31 
the applicant satisfactorily corrects all incidental deficiencies guaranteed by the 32 
deposit. 33 

(f) Amount of financial security.  If financial security is required, the applicant shall 34 
provide an estimate from the engineer of record for the cost to remove and 35 
replace all public subdivision improvements with incidental deficiencies.  The 36 
amount of the financial security to be provided by the applicant shall be 150% of 37 
the cost estimate or $7,500, whichever is greater. 38 

(g) Warranty inspection.  The County shall inspect all warranted public subdivision 39 
improvements prior to the expiration of the two year warranty period and provide 40 
to the applicant a list of deficiencies noted during the inspection.  The applicant 41 
shall remain responsible for correcting any deficiencies noted in the inspection 42 

PB: 2-7-17 
Re: Infrastructure Maintenance Disclosure 
Draft PB1 Page 2 
 



   
 

even if the corrective action is not completed until after the expiration of the two 1 
year warranty period. 2 

(h) Approval process Checklists provided by the appropriate department will give the 3 
applicant quick and ready access to the requirements of this article. 4 

(i) Recreational amenities.  For proposed subdivisions that are designed to utilize 5 
significant recreational amenities, including but not limited to a golf course, 6 
swimming pool, club house or tennis courts, the area designated for those uses 7 
shall be included in the final plat.  8 

(j) Infrastructure Maintenance Disclosure.  For any residential plat submitted to the 9 
Board on or after June 1, 2017, the applicant shall provide a complete listing of 10 
the infrastructure expected to be constructed within the platted area along with 11 
the location of such infrastructure and a disclosure of the person or entity 12 
responsible for maintenance of such infrastructure.  The format of this disclosure 13 
shall substantially mirror that provided in section 86-166 of the Escambia County 14 
Code of Ordinances. 15 

 16 

SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY. 17 
 18 
 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid 19 
or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no 20 
way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 21 
 22 
SECTION 3. INCLUSION IN THE CODE. 23 
 24 
 It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of 25 
this Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Fla. Stat. (2016); and 26 
that the sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be 27 
renumbered or relettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, 28 
“article”, or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such 29 
intentions. 30 
 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 

PB: 2-7-17 
Re: Infrastructure Maintenance Disclosure 
Draft PB1 Page 3 
 



   
 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 1 
 2 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 3 
 4 
  DONE AND ENACTED this _____ day of________________, 2017. 5 

 6 
      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 7 
      OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 8 
  9 

      By: _______________________________ 10 
         D.B. Underhill, Chairman 11 
ATTEST:  PAM CHILDERS 12 
  Clerk of the Circuit Court 13 

 14 
  By: __________________________ 15 

    Deputy Clerk  16 
 (SEAL) 17 

 18 

ENACTED: 19 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    20 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  21 

PB: 2-7-17 
Re: Infrastructure Maintenance Disclosure 
Draft PB1 Page 4 
 



  Draft #12 
  January 23, 2017 
  12:30 pm 
 

ORDINANCE 2017-__ 1 
 2 
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA; AMENDING 3 
CHAPTER 86, ARTICLE V, “DISCLOSURE REGARDING ABUTTING 4 
ROADWAYS,” SECTIONS 86-161 THROUGH 86-170, AMENDING THE 5 
REAL ESTATE DISCLOSURE ORDINANCE TO ADD A REQUIREMENT 6 
THAT ALL INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBLITIES IN 7 
NEW SUBDIVISIONS BE DISCLOSED BY SELLERS PRIOR TO 8 
CLOSING; ADDING A DEFINITION OF INFRASTRUCTURE; 9 
CLARIFYING THAT THE OBLIGATION TO SUPPLY REAL ESTATE 10 
DISCLOSURE FORMS FALLS ON THE SELLER; PROVIDING FOR 11 
DISPLAY OF ROADS ACCEPTED FOR COUNTY MAINTENANCE AND 12 
NEW SUBDIVISION INFRASTRUCTURE RESPONSIBILITIES ON THE 13 
COUNTY’S WEBSITE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING 14 
FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 15 
DATE. 16 

 17 
WHEREAS, it is vitally important for residential property buyers to know the financial 18 
ramifications of their property acquisition; and, 19 

  20 
WHEREAS, Sellers of residential properties are best equipped to know the parties 21 
responsible for maintenance of infrastructure serving the subject property; and,  22 
 23 
WHEREAS, maintenance of infrastructure can be extremely costly and is necessary for 24 
the most basic enjoyment of residential property rights. 25 
 26 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 27 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 28 
 29 
SECTION 1. Chapter 86, Article V, Sections 86-161 through 86-170 of the Escambia 30 
County Code of Ordinances is hereby amended as follows: 31 

 32 

ARTICLE V. - DISCLOSURE REGARDING ABUTTING ROADWAYS AND OTHER 33 

INFRASTRUCTURE 34 

 35 

Sec. 86-161. - Citation and title. 36 

This article shall constitute "Chapter 86, Article V of the Code of Ordinances of 37 
Escambia County" and may be cited as such; the title of this article shall be "Abutting 38 
Roadways and Other Infrastructure Maintenance Disclosure." 39 
 40 
Sec. 86-162. - Purpose. 41 

 42 

Since the proprietary status and quality of roadways abutting residential lots and other 43 
infrastructure within a subdivision have an impact on the responsibilities of 44 

1 
 



  Draft #12 
  January 23, 2017 
  12:30 pm 
 
homeowners to maintain such roadways and infrastructure, the ability to dedicate such 45 
roadways and infrastructure, and the development of such residential lots, the purpose 46 
of this article is to establish a mechanism whereby buyers of real property will be 47 
notified of the status of abutting roadways and other infrastructure to avoid surprise at 48 
some later date. 49 
 50 
Sec. 86-163. - Definitions. 51 
 52 
The following words, terms and phrases when used in this article, shall have the 53 
meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a 54 
different meaning: 55 
 56 
 Infrastructure means facilities and services needed to sustain land use activities, 57 
including streets, potable water service, wastewater service, solid waste facilities, 58 
power grids, telecommunication facilities and public schools. 59 
 60 

Roadway means a public or private right-of-way designed for vehicular traffic 61 
including all of the land lying between the right-of-way lines as delineated on a plat 62 
showing such roadways or other method of designation whether improved or 63 
unimproved. 64 

 65 
Sale means transmission of real property from one person to another by voluntary 66 

act and agreement between the seller and buyer founded on a valuable consideration. 67 
The meaning does not include transfers of real property conducted under a judgment, 68 
order, or supervision of a court of law or equity. 69 

 70 
Seller means the owner or title holder of real property or person or entity who has 71 

authority to enter into a contract for sale of the property. 72 
 73 
Sec. 86-164. - Exemptions. 74 

 75 

The following transfers shall be exempt from this article: 76 
 77 
(1)  Transfers pursuant to court order, including, but not limited to, transfers ordered 78 

by a probate court in the administration of an estate, transfers pursuant to a writ 79 
of execution, transfers by any foreclosure sale, transfers by a trustee in 80 
bankruptcy, transfers by eminent domain, and transfers resulting from a decree 81 
for specific performance. 82 

 83 
(2)  Transfers to a mortgagee by a mortgagor or successor in interest who is in 84 

default; transfers to a beneficiary of a deed of trust by a trustor or successor in 85 
interest who is in default; transfers by any foreclosure sale after default, in an 86 
obligation secured by a mortgage; transfers by a sale under a power of sale or 87 
any foreclosure sale under a decree of foreclosure after default in an obligation 88 
secured by a deed of trust or secured by any other instrument containing a 89 

2 
 



  Draft #12 
  January 23, 2017 
  12:30 pm 
 

power of sale; or transfers by a mortgagee or a beneficiary under a deed of 90 
trust who has acquired the real property at a sale conducted pursuant to a 91 
power of sale under a mortgage or deed of trust or a sale pursuant to a decree 92 
of foreclosure, or has acquired the real property by a deed in lieu of foreclosure. 93 

 94 
(3)  Transfer by a bank, savings and loan association, mortgage banker, the Federal 95 

National Mortgage Association, Government National Mortgage Association, 96 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, or other institutional lender who has 97 
acquired the property through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure. 98 

 99 
(4)  Transfers of condominiums, as defined in F.S. ch. 718; cooperatives, as defined 100 

in F.S. ch. 719; and time share plans, as defined in F.S. ch. 721. 101 
 102 
(5)  Transfers by a fiduciary in the course of the administration of a decedent's 103 

estate, guardianship, conservationship, or trust. 104 
 105 
(6)  Transfers from one co-owner to one or more other co-owners. 106 
 107 
(7)  Transfers made to a spouse or to a person or persons related by consanguinity 108 

to one or more of the transferors. 109 
 110 
(8)  Transfers between spouses resulting from a decree of dissolution of marriage or 111 

a decree of legal separation or from a property settlement agreement incidental 112 
to such a decree. 113 

 114 
(9)  Transfers under F.S. ch. 197 as a result of failure to pay property taxes. 115 
 116 
(10) Transfers or exchanges to or from an a governmental entity. 117 
 118 

Sec. 86-165. - Disclosure. 119 

 120 

(a)  Prior to execution of a contract for sale, including an installation sales 121 
agreement, for the closing on any improved or unimproved residential lot or lots 122 
located in the unincorporated areas of the county, the seller shall disclose to the 123 
buyer: 124 
 125 
 (1)  Whether the portions of any roadway that abuts the lot or lots to be 126 
purchased has have been accepted by the county for maintenance; and 127 
 128 
 (2)  That the seller of a residential building lot is required prior to the 129 
completion of any sales transaction to certify to the buyer that such lot, which is the 130 
subject of such contract for sale, is a part of a subdivision approved under the 131 
provisions of the 1996 Land Development Code of the county or that it has been 132 
specifically exempted from that code for the reasons which shall be specified in the 133 
disclosure statement.  For any lot or lots that are included in a plat accepted by the 134 

3 
 



  Draft #12 
  January 23, 2017 
  12:30 pm 
 
County on or after June 1, 2017, who is responsible for maintenance of all 135 
infrastructure within the platted area(s). 136 
 137 
(b)  Information as to whether the subject portion of roadway has been accepted for 138 
maintenance by county or as to whether a particular residential lot is a part of a 139 
subdivision approved by the county shall be provided in writing by county to seller 140 
within ten business days after receipt of a written request from seller on a form 141 
prepared and provided by the department of public works.  To assist sellers in 142 
making the disclosures required by this ordinance, the County shall maintain on its 143 
website at www.myescambia.com a database of public records on infrastructure 144 
maintenance and land development.  However, the disclosures required by this 145 
ordinance shall remain the exclusive obligation of the seller; nothing in this ordinance 146 
shall be construed to impose on the County, or its employees and agents, the 147 
obligation to make the disclosure on behalf of sellers or assist sellers in interpreting 148 
the public records or confirming the accuracy of the information contained in the 149 
database. 150 
 151 
Sec. 86-166. - Format. 152 

 153 

(a)  The Each required disclosure shall be a separate document which shall be 154 
prominently titled “Abutting Roadway Maintenance Disclosure" and "Subdivision 155 
Certification “Infrastructure Maintenance Disclosure." In addition, the document(s) 156 
must be signed by both the seller and the buyer and witnessed by two persons. If 157 
the property abuts more than one roadway, the seller may use one form to indicate 158 
the status of all such roadways. 159 
 160 
(b)  The board of county commissioners shall provide such forms; however, sellers 161 
may produce their own forms provided the types sizes for the title and body are no 162 
smaller than those on the forms provided by the board of county commissioners and 163 
the forms otherwise comply with the disclosure requirements of this article.  Forms 164 
for the disclosures required by this section are to be provided by the sellers in 165 
substantially the form provided below: 166 

 167 

Exhibit A 168 

RESIDENTIAL SALES 169 

ABUTTING ROADWAY 170 

MAINTENANCE DISCLOSURE 171 

ATTENTION:  Pursuant to section 86-165 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, sellers 172 
of residential lots are required to disclose to buyers whether abutting roadways will be 173 
maintained by Escambia County.  The disclosure must additionally provide that Escambia 174 
County does not accept roads for maintenance that have not been built or improved to meet 175 

4 
 

http://www.myescambia.com/


  Draft #12 
  January 23, 2017 
  12:30 pm 
 
county standards.  Section 86-166 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances requires this 176 
disclosure be attached along with other attachments to the deed or other method of conveyance 177 
required to be made part of the public records of Escambia County, Florida.  Note:  Acceptance 178 
for filing by County employees of this disclosure shall in no way be construed as an 179 
acknowledgment by the County of the veracity of any disclosure statement. 180 

Name of Roadway:  _________________________________________________ 181 

Legal Address of Property:  ___________________________________________ 182 

The County (  ) has accepted (  ) has not accepted the abutting roadway for maintenance. 183 

This information is believed to be correct and is being provided as it appears on the County’s 184 
website at www.myescambia.com.  185 

This form completed by: ____________________________ 186 
     Seller’s Name 187 
    ____________________________ 188 
     Address 189 
    ____________________________ 190 
     City, State, Zip Code 191 
AS TO SELLER(S): 192 
______________________________  ________________________________ 193 
Seller’s Name:  _________________  Witness’ Name:  __________________ 194 

______________________________  ________________________________ 195 
Seller’s Name:  _________________  Witness’ Name:  __________________ 196 

AS TO BUYER(S): 197 
______________________________  ________________________________ 198 
Buyer’s Name:  _________________  Witness’ Name:  __________________ 199 

______________________________  ________________________________ 200 
Buyer’s Name:  _________________  Witness’ Name:  __________________ 201 

Effective:  _______________ 202 

Exhibit B 203 
 204 

RESIDENTIAL SALES 205 
INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCE DISCLOSURE 206 

 207 
ATTENTION:  Pursuant to section 86-165 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, sellers of residential 208 
lots are required to disclose to buyers who is responsible for maintenance of infrastructure within areas 209 
platted on or after June 1, 2017.  Section 86-166 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances requires this 210 
disclosure be attached along with other attachments to the deed or other method of conveyance required to 211 
be made part of the public records of Escambia County, Florida.  Note:  Acceptance for filing by County 212 

5 
 

http://www.myescambia.com/


  Draft #12 
  January 23, 2017 
  12:30 pm 
 

employees of this disclosure shall in no way be construed as an acknowledgment by the County of the 213 
veracity of any disclosure statement. 214 
 215 
If multiple entities are responsible for maintenance of the same type of infrastructure within the platted area, 216 
you must attach an additional disclosure form for each responsible entity and designate the area of 217 
responsibility by lot and block.  218 
 219 
� If additional space is needed, please check box and attach additional pages.  220 

 221 
Name of Subdivision:  ___________________________________________ 222 

 Lots & Blocks______________________________________ (All or Specify)  223 
 224 

Responsibility of Infrastructure Maintenance Disclosure 
 

Type of Infrastructure Responsible Entity 
(i.e. Escambia Co., ECUA, Private, 

Homeowner) 
Road(s)  
Bridge(s)  
Retention Pond(s)  
Stormwater Conveyance or Easements (rear yard)  
Easements between lots (side yard)  
Sewer Lift Station Central  
Sewer System  
Water System  
Gas  
Other (i.e. Clubhouse)  
 225 
This information is believed to be correct and is being provided as it appears on the County’s website at 226 
www.myescambia.com.  227 
 228 
This form completed by:   ____________________________ 229 
      Seller’s Name 230 
     ____________________________ 231 
      Address 232 
     ____________________________ 233 
      City, State, Zip Code 234 
AS TO SELLER(S): 235 
______________________________    ________________________________ 236 
Seller’s Name:  _________________    Witness’ Name:  __________________ 237 
______________________________    ________________________________ 238 
Seller’s Name:  _________________    Witness’ Name:  __________________ 239 
AS TO BUYER(S): 240 
______________________________    ________________________________ 241 
Buyer’s Name:  _________________    Witness’ Name:  __________________ 242 
______________________________    ________________________________ 243 
Buyer’s Name:  _________________    Witness’ Name:  __________________ 244 
 245 
Effective:   246 
 247 
Page ___ of ____. You must note the total number of pages provided in this space.  248 
 249 
  250 

6 
 

http://www.myescambia.com/


  Draft #12 
  January 23, 2017 
  12:30 pm 
 
Sec. 86-167. - Additional language. 251 
 252 
The disclosures shall additionally provide that the county will not accept for 253 
maintenance roadways or other infrastructure not built or improved to meet county 254 
standards. However the preceding provision shall not be construed to enlarge or 255 
create any responsibility of the county to accept roadways or other infrastructure for 256 
maintenance. 257 
 258 

Sec. 86-168. - Filing. 259 

 260 
The disclosure documents shall be attached along with other attachments to the deed 261 
or other method of conveyance required to be made part of the public records of the 262 
county. However, failure to comply with this article shall not jeopardize the validity of 263 
any deed, nor effect the date of filing of the deed. Moreover, the acceptance of the 264 
disclosures by county employees for filing in the public records shall in no way be 265 
construed as an acknowledgement by the county of the truth of the statements 266 
therein. In addition, the acceptance for filing of any deed or other instrument shall not 267 
be an acknowledgement of compliance with the requirements of this article. 268 
 269 

Sec. 86-169. - Effect on title. 270 

 271 
No transfer subject to this article shall be invalidated solely because of the failure of 272 
any person to comply with any provisions of this article. 273 
 274 

Sec. 86-170. - Penalties. 275 

Any seller who shall violate any provision of this article, or who shall fail, neglect or 276 
refuse to comply with the requirements of this article, shall be prosecuted in the same 277 
manner as a misdemeanor in the second degree, and upon conviction shall be 278 
punished by a fine not to exceed $500.00 or imprisonment in the county jail not to 279 
exceed 60 days or by both such fine and imprisonment pursuant to F.S. §§ 775.08, 280 
775.081, 775.082 and 775.083. A separate offense shall be deemed committed for 281 
each transaction wherein the requirements of this article are not followed. 282 
 283 
SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY. 284 
 285 
 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid 286 
or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no 287 
way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 288 
 289 
SECTION 3. INCLUSION IN THE CODE. 290 
 291 
 It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of 292 
this Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Fla. Stat. (2016); and 293 
that the sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be 294 
renumbered or relettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, 295 

7 
 



  Draft #12 
  January 23, 2017 
  12:30 pm 
 
“article”, or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such 296 
intentions. 297 
 298 
SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 299 
 300 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 301 
 302 
  DONE AND ENACTED this _____ day of________________, 2017. 303 

 304 
      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 305 
      OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 306 
  307 

      By: _______________________________ 308 
         D. B. Underhill, Chairman 309 
 310 

ATTEST:  PAM CHILDERS 311 
  Clerk of the Circuit Court 312 

 313 
  By: __________________________ 314 

    Deputy Clerk  315 
 (SEAL) 316 

 317 

ENACTED: 318 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    319 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  320 

 321 
 322 
 323 

8 
 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. D.           
Meeting Date: 02/07/2017  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending

Chapter 3 Article 3, Section 3-3.7, Scenic Highway Overlay
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 3 Article 3,
Section 3-3.7, Scenic Highway Overlay

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC) Chapter 3 Article 3
Overlay Districts, Section 3-3.7 "Scenic Highway Overlay," to refine the list of structures
that must meet the minimum 50' setback from the Scenic Highway right-of-way.

BACKGROUND:
The BCC directed staff to amend provisions of the Scenic Highway Overlay to expand
the list of structure types that must meet the 50' minimum setback from the Scenic
Highway right-of-way. The Scenic Highway Overlay is intended to protect the unique
scenic vista and environmental resources of the Scenic Highway corridor and adjacent
Escambia Bay.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by
Meredith D. Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments
are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”



IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the LDC, will be filed with the Department of State following
adoption by the board.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with  the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance





   
 

PB: 2-7-17 
Re: Scenic Highway Overlay 
Draft MDC3PB1 Page 1 
 

ORDINANCE 2017-__ 1 

 2 
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA; AMENDING 3 

VOLUME II OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 4 
THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, 5 
FLORIDA; AMENDING CHAPTER 3, ARTICLE 3 “OVERLAY 6 
DISTRICTS”, SECTION 3-3.7 “SCENIC HIGHWAY OVERLAY”; 7 
REFINING THE SETBACK FOR STRUCTURES; PROVIDING FOR 8 

SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 9 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 10 

 11 
 WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 125, Florida 12 
Statutes, conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed 13 

to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and   14 

  15 
 WHEREAS, through the Land Development Code, the Escambia County Board 16 

of County Commissioners desires to preserve the county as a desirable community in 17 
which to live, vacation and do business; and,  18 
 19 

 WHEREAS, The Scenic Highway Overlay district is intended to protect the 20 
unique scenic vista and environmental resources of the Scenic Highway corridor and 21 

adjacent Escambia Bay. 22 
 23 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 24 

COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 25 

 26 

SECTION 1. Chapter 3, Article 3, Section 3-3.7 of the Escambia County Land 27 

Development Code is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and 28 
words stricken are deletions): 29 

Article 3 Overlay Districts 30 

Sec.3-3.7 Scenic Highway Overlay (SH-OL). 31 

 32 
(a) Purpose. The Scenic Highway Overlay (SH-OL) district establishes supplemental 33 

land use regulations to support the Pensacola Scenic Bluffs Highway Master Plan. The 34 
intent of the additional land use controls is to further the objectives of the plan, 35 
especially its protection of the unique scenic vista and environmental resources of the 36 

U.S. Highway 90 corridor and adjacent Escambia Bay shoreline. Controls established 37 
by the overlay work to alleviate the harmful effects of erosion and runoff caused by 38 
clearing natural vegetation and changing existing contours within the corridor, and to 39 
preserve the bluffs, wetland areas and scenic views along the bay for continued public 40 

access to and enjoyment of those views.  41 



   
 

PB: 2-7-17 
Re: Scenic Highway Overlay 
Draft MDC3PB1 Page 2 
 

(b) Boundary. The Scenic Highway Overlay district includes all parcels adjoining the 1 

west side of the Pensacola Scenic Bluffs Highway (U.S. Highway 90 or Scenic 2 
Highway) and all property between the highway and Escambia Bay on the east side of 3 

the highway, north from the Pensacola city limit along the highway for approximately 4 
five miles to the county line at Escambia River. 5 

  6 

(c) Permitted uses. All of the uses permitted within the underlying zoning districts are 7 
permitted, subject to the site and building requirements of the overlay district.  8 

 9 

(d) Site and building requirements.  10 
 11 
(1) Structure height. Structures between Scenic Highway and Escambia Bay shall 12 
have a maximum height of 35 feet as measured from the highest adjacent grade. Non-13 

residential uses may exceed the height limit if granted conditional use approval by the 14 
Board of Adjustment. In addition to the other conditional use criteria, the requested 15 

height must be found not to interfere with the scenic attractiveness of the location as 16 
viewed from any plausible direction, and for every two feet in height over 35 feet, there 17 

shall be an additional one foot of front and side setback at the ground level. 18 

 19 

(2) Lot coverage. Maximum land area coverage by all structures, parking areas, 20 

driveways and other impervious surfaces shall not exceed 50 percent of the gross site 21 
area.  22 

(3) Setback. All structures shall be located a minimum of 50 feet from the Scenic 23 

Highway right-of-way unless precluded by lot configuration or topography. For purposes 24 
of this sectionchapter, the term structures also includes walls, posts, fences, ornaments, 25 

decorations, decorative items, statues, sculptures, lights, light fixtures, landscaping,  26 
and all other customary yard accessories along with ornaments and decorations. 27 
 28 

(4) Building separation. The minimum distance between structures shall be 15 feet, 29 
and there shall be at least 100 feet between single-family dwellings and multi-family 30 

dwellings, residential group living, or public lodging.  31 
 32 

(5) Multi-use path. Based on the corridor management plan, a multi-use path on the 33 
east side of Scenic Highway is intended to run the full length of the corridor within the 34 
right-of-way, but at the maximum distance possible from the roadway pavement. 35 
Developers of property within the overlay are encouraged to maximize the innovative 36 
integration of a path extension into their development, but outside of the right-of-way on 37 

public property or on easements donated by private property owners.  38 

 39 

(6) Tree protection.  40 

a. A canopy tree protection zone is hereby established for all land within 20 feet of the 41 
right of way of Scenic Highway and Highway 90 from the Pensacola city limit to the 42 

Santa Rosa County line. No person or agency shall cut, remove, trim or in any way 43 



   
 

PB: 2-7-17 
Re: Scenic Highway Overlay 
Draft MDC3PB1 Page 3 
 

damage any tree in the canopy tree protection zone without a permit. Except in unique 1 

cases, permitted pruning shall not remove more than 30 percent of the existing tree 2 
material. Utility companies are not permitted to prune more than 30 percent of the 3 

existing tree canopy.  4 

b. Heritage Oak trees shall be preserved.  5 

c. Clearing of natural vegetation within the corridor shall require a land disturbance 6 
permit and is generally prohibited except for the minimum area needed for construction 7 
of allowable structures or view enhancement.  8 

 9 

(7) Landscaping. For developments otherwise subject to LDC landscaping 10 
requirements, a minimum 10-foot wide landscaped strip shall be required along any 11 
Scenic Highway frontage, and shall contain one tree for every 35 linear feet of frontage. 12 
The trees shall be of sufficient height at planting such that a six-foot view shed exists at 13 

planting. Preservation of existing plant communities within the required landscaped 14 
areas can be used to satisfy these requirements. 15 

  16 

(8) Orientation of non-residential buildings. Orientation of non-residential buildings 17 
shall be away from residential development within or adjacent to the district. Layout of 18 
parking and service areas, access, landscaping, yards, courts, walls, signs, lighting and 19 

control of noise and other potentially adverse influences shall be such as to promote 20 
protection of such residential development, and will include adequate buffering.  21 

 22 

(9) Fences. No fence within the overlay may be solid. No chain link fence shall be 23 
located between Scenic Highway and the principal building. Any other type of fence in 24 

this area shall not exceed three feet. Where single story structures are higher than the 25 

roadbed, there should be no wall, fence, structure or plant material located between the 26 

front building line and the roadbed that will obstruct the view from automobiles on the 27 
scenic route.  28 

 29 

(10) Structure location. All structures will be reviewed to assure conformance with the 30 
following criteria:  31 

a. The location shall afford maximum views of the bay from the street right-of-way.  32 
b. The location shall minimize impact on the natural bluff and plant material (other than 33 
pruning to enhance views).  34 

c. Provide underground utilities.  35 
 36 

SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY. 37 
 38 
 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid 39 
or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no 40 
way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 41 

 42 



   
 

PB: 2-7-17 
Re: Scenic Highway Overlay 
Draft MDC3PB1 Page 4 
 

SECTION 3. INCLUSION IN THE CODE. 1 

 2 
 It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of 3 

this Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Fla. Stat. (2016); and 4 
that the sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be 5 
renumbered or relettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, 6 
“article”, or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such 7 
intentions. 8 

 9 
SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 10 
 11 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 12 
 13 

  DONE AND ENACTED this _____ day of________________, 2017. 14 
 15 

      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 16 

      OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 17 
  18 

      By: _______________________________ 19 
         D.B. Underhill, Chairman 20 

ATTEST:  PAM CHILDERS 21 
  Clerk of the Circuit Court 22 

 23 
  By: __________________________ 24 

    Deputy Clerk  25 

 (SEAL) 26 

 27 

ENACTED: 28 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    29 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  30 



   
Planning Board-Regular   7. A.           
Meeting Date: 02/07/2017  

Agenda Item:
Spot Zoning Discussion

Attachments
Rezoning Approval Conditions



 

Page 1 of 2 
Last revised 1-25-17 
 

Draft Rezoning Conditions and Board Consideration 1 
 2 
Draft rezoning conditions and board consideration provisions are proposed as 3 
replacements to the corresponding text currently within LDC Section 2-7.2.  The 4 
revisions are intended to: 5 

• Identify the principal purpose of rezoning conditions in maintaining a 6 
logical and orderly development pattern 7 

• Incorporate useful rezoning considerations from other jurisdictions 8 

• Consolidate and focus rezoning conditions into the essential hearing 9 
questions for review 10 

• Define and allow “spot zoning” but require greater justification for it 11 

• Retain and emphasize the board’s responsibility to consider when retaining 12 
the existing zoning may be in the best interest of the public 13 

 14 

Sec. 2-7.2 LDC zoning map and text amendments 15 

(b) Zoning map amendment 16 

(4) Approval conditions. The applicant has the burden of presenting competent 17 
substantial evidence to the reviewing board establishing that the requested zoning 18 
district would contribute to or result in a logical and orderly development pattern 19 
as demonstrated by all of the following conditions:   20 

a. Consistent with Comprehensive Plan. The proposed zoning is consistent 21 
with the future land use (FLU) category as prescribed in LDC Chapter 3, and 22 
with all other applicable goals, objectives, and policies of the 23 
Comprehensive Plan.  A zoning change necessary to implement a pending 24 
FLU map amendment may, however, be authorized conditional to adoption 25 
of the FLU change.  [required evidence narrowed to FLU and other 26 
applicable Comp Plan provisions, and specific exception for pending 27 
FLU included] 28 

b. Consistent with district provisions.  The proposed zoning is consistent 29 
with the purpose and intent, location criteria, and any other zoning 30 
establishment provisions prescribed by the proposed district in Chapter 3.  31 
[districts already include one or more of these guides to appropriate 32 
establishment] 33 

c. Compatible with surroundings.  All of the permitted uses of the proposed 34 
zoning, not just those anticipated by the rezoning applicant, are compatible 35 
with the surrounding uses.  The uses of any surrounding undeveloped land 36 
shall be considered the permitted uses of the applicable district. 37 
Compatibility is not, however, considered for possible conditional uses of the 38 
districts or for any nonconforming or unapproved uses.  Also, in establishing 39 
the compatibility of a residential use, there is no additional burden to 40 
demonstrate the compatibility of specific residents or activities protected by 41 



 

Page 2 of 2 
Last revised 1-25-17 
 

county, state, or federal fair housing law (e.g., affordable housing). 1 
[included limits that focus testimony on relevant conditions, including 2 
reference to fair housing consistent with conditional use conditions for 3 
residential uses (separate pending ordinance)] 4 

d. Appropriate where spot zoning.  Where the proposed zoning would 5 
establish or reinforce a condition of spot zoning as defined in Chapter 6, the 6 
isolated district would nevertheless be transitional in character between the 7 
adjoining districts or the differences with those districts would otherwise be 8 
limited.  The extent of these mitigating conditions demonstrates a 9 
site-specific balancing of interests appropriate to the characteristics of the 10 
isolated district.  [spot zoning is allowed with additional justification] 11 

e. Appropriate with changing conditions.  The area surrounding the 12 
property of the proposed zoning has changed, or is changing, to such a 13 
degree that the permitted uses of the proposed district are not premature for 14 
the area and not likely to create or contribute to urban sprawl. 15 

(5) Board Action. If the reviewing board finds from the record of the hearing that 16 
the applicant has presented competent substantial evidence establishing the 17 
required approval conditions, the board shall then consider whether maintaining 18 
the current zoning will serve a greater public interest.  If both of the following 19 
conditions are confirmed and no greater public interest is otherwise found in 20 
maintaining the current zoning, the board shall recommend approval of the 21 
rezoning request to the BCC:  [board retains ability and responsibility to not 22 
recommend approval if other conditions outweigh conditions proven] 23 

a. No new uses, density, or intensity of use will likely diminish quality of life, 24 
reduce property values, confer a special benefit on the subject property to 25 
the detriment of the community as a whole, or create other adverse impacts 26 
upon surrounding properties more than the uses, density, or intensity of the 27 
current zoning.   28 

b. Greater consideration has been given to the protection of established 29 
conforming investments than to projected investments, and future beneficial 30 
use is encouraged rather than the sale of land for mere speculation. 31 

 32 
Sec. 6.0-3 Terms defined. 33 

Spot zoning.  Zoning applied to an area of land, regardless of its size, that is different 34 
from the zoning of any adjoining land.  Such isolated or “spot” zoning is usually higher 35 
in its density or intensity of use than the adjoining zoning and may, therefore, extend 36 
privileges not generally extended to property similarly located in the area.  Spot 37 
zoning is not by itself prohibited, but due to its potentially adverse impacts on 38 
adjoining zoning it carries a higher burden of demonstration that, if authorized, it will 39 
contribute to or result in the logical and orderly development required of all zoning.40 
 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_Draft January 3, 2017 Planning Board Regular Meeting Minutes
	Att2_Monthly Action Follow-Up
	Att3_Six Month Outlook
	PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE
	SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR FEBRUARY 2017

	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the 2030 Future Land Use Map, LSA-2016-03
	Att1_LSA-2016-03
	LSA-2016-03
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	Exsiting FLU Map
	Proposed FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial/Wetland Map
	AIPD Map
	Photos
	Addendum/Supplemental Infomation
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Warranty Deed
	Applicant Data and Analysis
	Boundary Survey
	Staff Anaylsis
	TTO Comments
	Beulah Expressway Ordinance 2007-81
	Protected Zone Extensions

	Att2_Draft Ordinance
	public notification
	Att1_Draft Ordinance
	final plat infrastructure maintenance
	Att1_Draft Ordinance
	Att2_Backup material
	Scenic Highway Overlay
	Att1_Draft Ordinance
	Spot Zoning Discussion
	Att1_Rezoning Approval Conditions

